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Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union is committed 

to eing a dynamic and model nancial instit tion  

operating on so nd co operati e and siness principles 

to pro ide ality competiti e nancial prod cts and 

ser ices t at engender sel reliance and nancial ia ility 

in o r mem ers ip

Mission Statement
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ord ma e me an instr ment o  yo r peace
ere t ere is atred  let me so  lo e
ere t ere is in ry  pardon
ere t ere is do t  ait
ere t ere is despair  ope
ere t ere is dar ness  lig t
ere t ere is sadness  oy

 i ine aster  grant t at  may not
so m c  see
o e consoled  as to console
o e nderstood  as to nderstand
o e lo ed  as to lo e

FOR

t is in gi ing  t at e recei e
t is in pardoning  t at e are pardoned
nd it is in dying 
at e are orn to eternal li e

E

Prayer of
St. Francis of Assisi

Forged rom t e lo e o  li erty
n t e Fires o  ope and rayer

it  o ndless Fait  in o r estiny
e olemnly eclare

Side by Side We Stand
slands o  t e l e Caribbean Sea

is o r ati e and
We ledge o r i es to ee

ere e ery Creed and Race
Find an E al lace

nd ay od less O r ation

National Anthem
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Notice
otice is ereby gi en t at t e 6 rd nn al eneral eeting o  t e Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union Co

operati e Society imited CECU  ill ta e place at t e ion’s C lt ral Centre  Fit lac man ri e  Woodbroo  on 

rsday  arc  6t   at  p m  or t e ollo ing p rposes

 o recei e t e reports o  t e oard o  irectors  Committees and t e alance S eet o  t e Credit Union or 

t e year ended ecember  

 o elect O cers

 o appoint ditors

 o transact any ordinary b siness t at may properly come be ore t e o se

Agenda
 n ocation  

 Report o  t e Credential Committee

 resident’s Welcome  o ind a ara

 Election o  e  O cers

 Correspondence

6  Reading and Con rmation o  in tes

 Reports

  a  oard o  irectors

  b  ditors

  c  dget

  d  ominations Committee

  e  Credit Committee

   S per isory Committee

 Resol tions

 ny ot er siness

 OR ER OF E O R  OF REC ORS

erri nn osep rat aite

Secretary
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Standing Orders
  member s all stand en addressing t e C air   Speec es s all be clear and rele ant to t e s b ect be ore 

t e meeting

  member s all address t e meeting en called pon by t e C airman to do so  a ter ic  e s all 
immediately ta e is seat

 o member s all address t e meeting e cept t ro g  t e C airman

  member may not spea  t ice on t e same s b ect  e cept

   e mo er o  a motion  o as t e rig t to reply
   e rises to ob ect to or e plain it  permission o  t e c air

 o speec es s all be made a ter t e estion as been p t and carried or denied

6  e mo er o  a proced ral motion  ad o rnment  lay on t e table  motion to postpone  s all a e no rig t 
to reply

  member rising on a point o  order  s all state t e point clearly and concisely   point o  order m st a e 
rele ance to t e standing order

  member s all not call  anot er member to order  b t may dra  t e attention o  t e C air to a breac  
o  order  On no acco nt can a member call t e C air to order

 Only one amendment s all be be ore t e meeting at one and t e same time

 W en a motion is it dra n  any amendment to it alls

 e C airman s all a e t e rig t to a casting ote

  t ere is an e ality o  oting on an amendment and i  t e C airman does not e ercise is casting ote  t e 
amendment is lost

 ro ision s all be made or protection by t e C airman rom ili cation personal ab se

 o member s all imp te improper moti es against anot er
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Financial Highlights
For t e nancial year ended ecember st   it  comparati e g res or 

               2014           2013
            $                                    $

O  SSE S 6      

S RES 6            

O S 6             6  

O  CO RE E S E CO E                

O  E E SES     6               6  

E S               6

ERES  RE E                  

E ERS               

S FF                 6   

ditors

 ontgomery  Company
 bercromby St

OR  OF S

Solicitors

r  an Ramcoomarsing  r   e itt
ttorney t a  ttorney t a  

Sac ille Street 6 bercromby Street
OR  OF S  OR  OF S    
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1.0 CALL TO ORDER

  resident and C airman o  t e proceedings  o ind 
a ara  called t e meeting to order at  p m   
ccording to t e report o  t e Credentials’ Committee  

t ere ere  members and  g ests present  e t en 
ga e notice t at t e meeting as d ly constit ted

2.0 INVOCATION

Follo ing t e ational nt em and t e Credit Union rayer  
t ere as one min te o  silence or deceased members

3.0 NOTICE OF MEETING

e Secretary  aria Ri as c illan  read t e o cial 
otice o  t e eeting

4.0 WELCOME AND OPENING REMARKS

n is elcome  o ind a ara  spo e to yet anot er 
s ccess l year or Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union  
For t e rst time in t e istory o  t e credit nion  t ere 
ad been a s rpl s in e cess o   million  accomplis ed 

d ring a period o  lo  interest rates on in estments and 
competition or loans rom ot er nancial instit tions  

rnit re and appliance o ses   

e ind strio s ar eting Committee  or ing in tandem 
it  t e Credit Committee  ere able to generate loans to 

t e al e o   million in  e ceeding t e g re or 
 o  6 million   

e n estment Committee  e en in t is pre ailing lo  
interest rate en ironment  as able to ta e ad antage 
o  t e in estment opport nities to increase t e Society’s 
in estment by appro imately  o er t e pre io s year  

ro g  t e ast te management by t e elin ency 
Committee and t e management team  t e credit nion 
reco ered appro imately  million ort  o  delin ent 
loans   elin ency decreased rom  to  at 
t e end o  t e period nder re ie   s a res lt o  t is 
ac ie ement  CECU’s a ditors agreed t at no pro ision 
s o ld be made or loan loss in t e  nancial year

ood corporate go ernance contin ed to be o  
paramo nt importance to CECU   ring t e year t e loan 
policy as re ie ed and circ lated to t e members ip ia 

Mrs. Terri Ann Joseph-Brathwaite,
Secretary

Minutes
Minutes of 62nd Annual General 

Meeting of Canning’s Employees’ 

Credit Union Co-operative

Society Limited held on

Thursday, March 27th, 2014

at the Lion’s Cultural Centre,

Fitzblackman Drive, Woodbrook.
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print and electronic media   CECU circ lated t e dra t 
re ised CECU’s ye a s to members at t e nn al 

eneral eeting   e t an ed t e ye a s Committee 
or its ard or  and dedication and in ormed t e 

members ip t at a Special eneral eeting ill be 
sc ed led or appro al o  t e re ised ye a s  

e merger initiati e bet een CECU and ordoni s as 
ell as ggins Credit Unions as been p t on old at 

t is time   n one instance  t e ne  oard as to indicate 
et er it is illing to contin e it  t e merger plans  

and in t e second  some more in ormation is needed to 
complete t e d e diligence e ercise   

e in ormed members t at appro imately  million o  
mortgage b siness is presently being processed   r  

a ara  reiterated t at  in order to re ard members 
it  a ret rn on t eir in estment ic  t ey deser e  

t e Society needs t e lion s are o  members’ b siness  

e implored members to consider t eir credit nion 
rst and oremost or t eir nancial re irements since 

t e ban s ill not gi e members t e ret rn on t eir 
o n monies ic  t ey recei e rom t eir credit nion   

e cost o  borro ing rom t e credit nion is less t an 
borro ing rom ban s

s a res lt o  members con erting t eir ed deposits 
to s ares  t ere as an increase o  6 million in 
s ares d ring t e period nder re ie

On be al  o  t e entire credit nion  r  a ara  
e pressed pro o nd gratit de to r  re or o ell 
and rs  aria Ri as c illan or t eir yeoman 
ser ice to Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union  as t ey 

ill not be o ering t emsel es or ser ice in  
ot  members ad ser ed diligently or more t an 6 

and  years  respecti ely   

On be al  o  t e oard o  irectors  r  a ara  
t an ed all irectors or t eir s pport d ring t e 
period nder re ie  and management and sta  or 
t eir contin ed s pport and as ed t at it be increased 
in  

5.0 FEATURE ADDRESS

rs  Ri as c illan introd ced t e g est spea er  
on  R dranat  ndarsing  inister o  State in t e 
inistry o  Finance and t e Economy   
inister R dranat  ndarsing  greeted t e oard  

t e representati es rom t e inistry o  abo r  
Small and icro Enterprise e elopment and all t e 
disting is ed members  

e stated t at it as an ono r and a pri ilege to 
oin members at t eir 6 nd nn al eneral eeting   
e e pressed is deepest apologies  on be al  o  
inister o  Finance and t e Economy  t e on  
inister arry o ai  o ad initially accepted 

t e in itation to t e e ent b t d e to na oidable 
circ mstances co ld not be present
  

inister ndarsing  all ded to t e gro t  o  t e 
organi ation since inception  in t e n mber o  
members  t e nancial strengt  it  an asset base o  

 million  a loan port olio o  o er  million and 
a s are base o   million     e elt t at it as o  
great signi cance t at  or t e rst time in t e Credit 
Union’s istory  t e Society ad reali ed a s rpl s o  
o er  million

e Credit Union mo ement  e said  as been 
pro iding its members and  by e tension  t e ider 
comm nity  an impro ed standard o  li ing and ality 
o  li e  t contrib tes to t e entreprene rial spirit it in 
t e economy by pro iding small b sinesses  ic  are 
one o  t e cornerstones o  s stainable de elopment 
t ro g  access to credit
 

o ernment as cogni ant o  t e act t at Credit 
Unions contin e to contrib te to t e ision o  
trans orming t e economy into a di ersi ed  no ledge 
intensi e ind stry   e ga e t e ass rance t at t e 
go ernment o ld do all t at it can to pro ide an 
en ironment t at is cond ci e to t e contin ed gro t  
and e pansion o  t e Credit Union sector in t e co ntry

e stated t at moderni ation o  t e reg latory and 
s per isory rame or  it in ic  t e mo ement 
operates  is one o  t e ays t at go ernment is doing so  

e economy is estimated to a e e panded by  per 
cent in   e non energy sector contin es to be on a 
pat  o  gro t  recording a gro t  o   per cent in t e 
t ird arter o    n ation contin ed on a do n ard 
trend a eraging  per cent in t e o rt  arter o  

 compared it   ic  as registered in t e 
comparati e period o    ere is a ealt y balance o  
payment acco nt ic  is estimated to record a s rpl s 
o  US 6  million or  and gross international 
reser es o  appro imately US  billion at t e end o  

  representing mont s or import co er
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e noted t at t e dra ting o  t e ne  Credit Union 
legislation as s bstantially complete    t ill oc s 
on areas s c  as go ernance  and t e protection o  
members’ nds  is as ery important not only 
rom t e point o  ie  o  t e organi ation b t also t at 

o  society and co ntry  s e contin e to gro  and 
e pand  members m st contin e to a e tr st in t e 
Credit Union   

 core principle o  t e World Co ncil o  Credit Unions 
recogni es t at legislation s o ld set o t a strong 
s per isory rame or  t at is pr dential  proportional 
and predictable  is rame or  establis es minim m 
operational  administrati e go ernance and a diting 
re irements  is is e actly at t e Credit Union ill 
proposes  e stressed t at t ere as been ide spread 
cons ltation as it relates to t is piece o  legislation ic  

ill come to t e arliament it in a s ort period o  time  

e re ected on some aspects o  corporate 
go ernance and t e roles o  t e oard o  irectors  
internal a dit and t e e ternal a dit in t e protection 
o  members’ sa ings  e ey dri ing orce be ind 
s ccess l b sinesses  incl ding Credit Unions  is t e 

ality o  bot  go ernance and management being 
properly embedded it  a ris  management and 
go ernance rame or  

One  b sinesses t at adopt and implement t ese types 
o  rame or  are better positioned to react to mar et 
c anges and ta e ad antage o  t e opport nities 
t at may arise   anagement rame or  allo s t em 
to better nderstand t e strengt s and ea nesses 
o  t eir b siness model and demonstrate a better 
nderstanding and management o  ris   

n terms o  corporate go ernance  a credit Union s o ld 
a e a clear organi ational str ct re it  ell de ned 

transparent and consistent reporting lines as ell as 
doc mented roles and responsibilities   t s o ld a e 
a strong and e perienced oard it  a detailed 

nderstanding o  t e Credit Union o ement

embers o  t e management team s o ld a e 
t e s ills set re ired to manage t e Credit 

Union in line it  t e strategies and policies 
set by t e oard o  irectors   Credit Union 

oards m st ens re t at t ey ta e t e 
rig t decisions or t eir credit nion and  
at all times  act in t e interest o  t e ider 
members ip   e oard o  irectors as 
t e responsibility or t e general direction 
and control  records  and strategic direction 
and management o  t e a airs and nds o  
t e credit nion

W en establis ing corporate go ernance 
arrangement  credit nions s o ld ta e 
into acco nt t e nat re  scale  comple ity  
and ris  pro le o  t e b siness t at t ey 
are in ol ed in  ese s o ld be a ey 
determinant in t e le el o  o ersig t  s ills  
e pertise  systems and control re irements  

e oard o  irectors s o ld also de elop 
a strategy and a e ll o ersig t o  t e 
credit nion’s ris  management system and 
s o ld ens re t at systems and controls are 
p t in place to manage and mitigate ris s   

10 2014 Annual Report
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e oard is ltimately responsible or t e protection 
o  members o a e entr sted t e organi ation it  
t eir money  C allenging t e ass mption nderlining 
strategic plans mitigating ris  and rob stly disc ssing 
t e iss es ic  ace t e credit nion is central to t e 

oard’s role   

e ent on to add t at t e collapse o  se eral large 
instit tions  it  t e onsla g t o  t e global nancial 
crisis as nderscored t e importance o  an internal 
a dit nction and t e role o  an e ternal a ditor     

e role o  t e internal a dit nction is to pro ide 
independent internal o ersig t and to e al ate 
and impro e t e e ecti eness o  t e credit nions 
management system  internal go ernance and controls   
t m st be separate rom ot er nctions and capable o  
operating independently o  t e management  o ens re 
t e e ecti eness o  t e internal a dit nction it is also 
important t at t e oard o  irectors reg larly re ie s 
its per ormance and e ecti eness   

e e ternal a ditor also as an important role to 
play incl ding carrying o t stat tory d ties nder t e 
proposed Credit Unions ill  e e ternal a ditor is 
re ired to report to members on t e acco nts t at 
t ey a e e amined  e e ternal a ditor also as ot er 
important d ties to per orm in terms o  reporting to t e 
Central an  based on at is proposed to come
  

e inister stated t at t e Central an  also as an 
important role  t at is to ens re credit nions comply 

it  t e legislation  s reg lator t eir role is to protect 
members’ sa ings and maintain t e nancial stability 
and ell being o  credit nions  

n concl sion e re emp asi ed t e implementation 
o  a strong corporate go ernance str ct re and ris  
management rame or  is essential to t e s ccess o  
t e b siness model  e gro t  and de elopment o  
t e Credit Union Sector is important to t e co ntry’s 
socio economic gro t  and de elopment  e rged 
members t at t ey m st contin e to ens re t at t ey 
a e t at sense o  int ition and contin ed commitment 

to ens re t at en electing a oard o  irectors it 
o ld be one t at can eep t e credit nion on a pat  

o  gro t  and de elopment   

e ass red t e members ip t at t e inistry o  Finance 
and t e Economy o ld contin e to partner it  t e 
mo ement  ere o ld also be collaboration it  

t e inistry o  abo r  Small and icro Enterprise 
e elopment to ens re t at t e p ilosop y o  t e 

go ernment o  rinidad and obago ens res t at 
t e people based organi ation o  t e Credit Union 

o ement contin es to gro  by leaps and bo nds   

6.0 VOTE OF THANKS

CECU ice resident enny alsa t an ed inister 
R dranat  ndarsing  or is signi icant insig t 
and direction  e t en presented im it  a to en 
o  appreciation

7.0 ACCEPTANCE OF THE ANNUAL REPORT

e nn al Report as ta en as read on a motion 
mo ed by r  ester amlet and seconded by s 

ian ope  

8.0 PROCEDURE FOR THE MEETING

e meeting accepted t e Standing Orders on page 6  
on a motion mo ed by r  re or o ell and seconded 
by rs  ary F llerton

9.0 NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE’S REPORT

r  re or F ng  C airman o  t e ominations 
Committee  presented t e ominations Committee’s 
Report   e reported t at  at t e end o  t e process  
t e ollo ing nominees ere recommended

Supervisory Committee
e on ntrob s isa Escalante
amara orrin ernadette c Cart y 
is a illet ig el in eiro

Board of Directors
R berto eddoe ary F llerton

nt ony aingot C andra ali a ara
o ind a ara  anice earmond Cri i

Fran  Ri as ester Syl ester

Credit Committee
Rosemary yres iola Callender
Cyllan C arles nior oray

iselle all at y nn oe
atalie O en lenn iont o s i
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10.0 VOTING PROCEDURES

rior to mo ing into t e meeting  t e C airman in ited 
members to begin t e oting proced re by casting otes 
or t e S per isory Committee  persons  t e oard o  
irectors  persons  and nally  t e Credit Committee  

persons  r  rt r any  Retired a  O cer and t e 
scr tineers ere in ited to inspect and sec re t e ballot 
bo es accordingly  e scr tineers ere

Team 1:
R onda Clar e eader  oanne gard Williams
ystra entor enni er Williams

Team 2:
S san ongdon eader  elen lac man
Camille omes oy amilton

Team 3:
Erica Ca oe eader  Selma ere  
R onda Romany licia o ng

ere ere no additional nominees rom t e oor

11.0 CREDENTIAL COMMITTEE’S REPORT

 Credential Report at 6  p m  re ealed t at  
members  g ests ere present

12.0      ELECTION RESULTS

e res lts o  t e elections ere as ollo s

Supervisory Committee
Nominees No. of Votes Tenure

ig el in eiro   year
isa Escalante 6  year
ernadette c Cart y   year
is a illet  st lternate  
e on ntrob s    nd lternate
amara orrin  

Board of Directors
Nominees No. of Votes Tenure

o ind a ara    years
ary F llerton   years
ester Syl ester   years

C andra ali a ara    years
Fran  Ri as  st lternate  

nt ony aingot  6 nd lternate  
anice earmond Cri i  

R berto eddoe  

ere ere t o spoilt ballots

Credit Committee
Nominees No. of Votes Tenure

iola Callender   year
lenn iont o s i   year
atalie O en   year 
nior oray   year

Rosemary yres   year
at y nn oe 6 st lternate
iselle all    nd lternate

Cyllan C arles   

13.0 RESOLUTION FOR DESTRUCTION
 OF BALLOTS

On a mo ement by Rosemary yres and seconded by 
Francis nniss  t e meeting accepted a motion or t e 
ballots to be destroyed

14.0 EXCUSES

e C airman stated t at t ere ere no e c ses 
recei ed rom in ited g ests

15.0 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF GUESTS

e C airman ac no ledged t e presence o  t e 
ollo ing g ests

r  ar  rotman eac ers’ Credit Union
r  a rence ac s a  ordoni s Credit Union
r  rt r any Retired a  O cer
r  Romes  ra es First Citi en’s 

 n estment Ser ices
r  eit  ing Frontline Sec rities
r  Raymond e is resident  eal and assy 

 ort  Credit Union
rs  ic elle Cole adilla Co Operati e epartment
r  a rice alere ttorney at a

   
16.0 GREETINGS

r  ar  rotman rom eac er’s Credit Union bro g t 
greetings rom is organi ation   e commended 
Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union on t e onder l 
broc re and t e onder l res lts ac ie ed at t e end 
o  t e nancial year  

r  Raymond e is o  eal and assy ort  bro g t 
greetings rom is organi ation   e stated t at e 
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as also a member o  Canning’s Employees’ Credit 
Union and congrat lated all on t e 6 nd nn al 

eneral eeting   e commended t e resident or 
is comm nication s ills and t e ality o  t e nn al 
eneral eeting   

r  arry ac s a  resident o  ordoni s Credit 
Union  bro g t greetings rom is organi ation   e 
too as a member o  t e Canning’s Employees’ Credit 
Union and e spo e o  t e ope l merger bet een 
CECU and ordoni s Credit Union   e e tended best 

is es to t e organi ation or contin ed s ccess  

r  eit  ing o  Front ine Sec rities bro g t 
greetings rom is organi ation and indicated t at e 

as impressed it  t e Credit Union   Frontline o ld 
contin e to s pport Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union 
by s pplying t em it  t eir ser ices   e o ered 
CECU best is es or a s ccess l nn al eneral 

eeting  or  and t e years a ead   

n bringing greetings rom is organi ation  r  
Romes  ra es o  First Citi en’s n estment Ser ices 
congrat lated CECU or a splendid per ormance 
in  and also on its lo  delin ency ratio   e 
e tended best is es to t e Society or  

17.0 MINUTES OF 61ST ANNUAL 
 GENERAL MEETING

e in tes o  t e 6 st nn al eneral eeting eld 
on rsday  arc    ere to be o nd on 
pages    o  t e nn al Report   

e in tes ere con rmed on a motion by rs Carol 
Roberts and seconded by r  Francis nniss

Matters Arising

n response to a ery rom r  Wayne Estrada abo t 
et er CECU ad ac ie ed its pro ected re en e or 

t e period nder re ie  t e C airman indicated t at 
t e Society ad not b t instead ac ie ed  million 
o  ic   million as in estment and 6 as 
loan interest  r  Estrada obser ed t at t ere are many 
net sa ers in CECU and e ad ised t e credit nion 
to create prod cts  s c  as loans it in s ares at lo  
rates  ic  ill enco rage net sa ers to ta e loans 
e en i  to p t t e money on s ares

rs  anice earmond Cri i ga e t e ollo ing ad ice

  ire a Compliance O cer
  Re ise incenti es or borro ing
  e competiti e it  respect to mortgage loans
  Use t e re irements o  t and proper in t e ne  
  legislation or directors to ser e on t e oard
  Ens re t at t ere is ongoing F U training or 
  oard and Committees 

18.0 CORRESPONDENCE

ere as no correspondence or t e meeting to note
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19.0 ADOPTION OF THE BOARD OF 
 DIRECTORS’ REPORT

e C airman in ited corrections to and omissions rom 
t e oard o  irectors’ Report  o nd on pages    o  
t e nn al Report  e correction as stated on t e Errata 
S eet as ac no ledged  Under n E en S eeter 
Ride   cars

Matters Arising
r  Estrada s ggested t at  it  respect to t e pro t 

earned on t e s ares p rc ased rom FC ’s nitial 
rc ase O er  t e credit nion can remo e some 

o  t e nds and allo  t e remainder to or  or t e 
Society by lending to members

Acceptance
On a motion by r  lenn iont o s i and seconded 
by s lice ere  t e meeting adopted t e report

20.0 AUDITORS’ REPORT/FINANCIAL 
 STATEMENTS

s erry C ee C o  o   ontgomery  Company 
presented t e ditors’ Report   e attention o  
members as dra n to t e alance S eet  ncome and 
E pendit re cco nt  Cas  Flo  Statement  Statement 
o  C anges in embers’ F nds  Receipts and ayments 

cco nt and otes to t e Financial Statements

Matters Arising
e ollo ing s ggestions estions comments

obser ations by members ere noted

 eep members in ormed on t e stat s o  t eir 
S ares and olden Star cco nts

 mpro e comp ter ser ices to generate and 
print statements online

 ecrease e pendit re and start it  online 
statements

 o not classi y t e monetary gi t to 
long standing member Cal in Francis as 

onorari m

n response to estions posed comments obser ations  
t e C airman apprised members as ollo s

 e credit nion p rc ased ne  comp ters 
instead o  spending money on repairs

 egis as contracted to do a mar eting 
analysis s r ey on ey per ormance indicators 
and to pdate ob descriptions   is is a 

al able management assessment tool
 ncrease in comp ter ser ices is d e to on

going maintenance o  t e Emmortelle system 
as t e n mber o  members as ell as loans 
increase

 WOCCU Con erence e pense came rom t e 
Ed cation F nd

e ditors’ Report and Financial Statements ere 
adopted on a motion by s ian ope  and seconded 
by r  gnati s landin

21.0 BUDGET

e C airman placed t e b dget be ore t e 
members ip or re ie  and comments

eneral anager E gene Step enson t ell presented 
t e operating b dget or  and ig lig ted t e 
pro ections or 

 otal ncome o  6 6
 otal E penses o  
 otal e cess o  ncome o er E pendit re o  

Matters Arising
e ollo ing s ggestions estions obser ations by 

members ere noted

 embers ser ed t e credit nion o er t e 
years and a e not accepted onoraria  incl de 
onoraria or t em in t e ne t b dget

 roposal or onoraria or board and stat tory 
committees can be tabled and disc ssed at t e 
Special eneral eeting ic  ill ta e place 
in t e ery near t re

 e meeting can appro e t e b dget and it can 
be amended at t e Special eneral eeting to 
cater or onoraria

 Reconsider allocation or legal ees i  t e credit 
nion intends to o er mortgage loans

 e oard can decide to pay o cers’ stipend
 O er pre erred rates or senior citi ens
 embers s o ld be able to transact b siness 

on line
 Ed cate members on t e prod cts and ser ices 

o ered by t eir credit nion

n response to estions posed comments
obser ations  members ere apprised as ollo s

 e decision not to accept onoraria as not a 
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decision o  t e oard  it is in t e ye la s
 e ye a s ill a e to be amended or 

o cers to accept onoraria
 e ye a s a e to be amended and 

appro ed by t e Commissioner o  Cooperati es
 re erred rates or senior citi ens is one o  t e 

S OS  initiati es

e b dget or  as adopted on a motion by r  
ester amlet and seconded by s atalie O en  

23.0 CREDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT

e resident  o ind a ara  re erred members 
to t e Credit Committee’s Report on pages     

e correction as stated on t e Errata S eet as 
ac no ledged  atalie O en present  times and 
none e c sed

t as noted t at t e committee appro ed 6 6  loans 
it  an aggregate al e o  6

ere being no matters arising  t e report 
o  t e Credit Committee as adopted on a 
motion by rs  Elsa ie  and seconded by 

rs  erri nn osep rat aite

24.0 SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’S 
 REPORT

e report o  t e S per isory Committee  as 
stated on page  as s bmitted or comment   

e correction as stated on t e Errata S eet as 
ac no ledged  ig el in eiro

ere being no matters  t e report o  t e S per isory 
Committee as adopted on a motion by r  Cal in 
Francis and seconded by rs  Carol Roberts

25.0 RESOLUTIONS

Appointment of Auditors
Secretary aria Ri as c illan  on be al  o  t e 

oard o  irectors  presented t e ollo ing resol tion 
to t e meeting

Be it resolved t at t e rm  ontgomery  
Company be appointed or t e nancial year 
ending ecember st  

On a motion by r  enny alsa and seconded by r  
Cal in Francis  t e resol tion as appro ed by t e 
meeting it  all members oting in t e a rmati e

Dividend
Secretary aria Ri as c illan  on be al  o  t e 

oard o  irectors  presented t e ollo ing resol tion 
to t e meeting

Be it resolved t at in accordance it  bye la  
 Section  a di idend o  6  be paid on 
lly paid p s ares at t e end o  t e nancial 

year ended ecember st   and t at s c  
di idends be credited to members’ s ares

On a motion by s ian ope  and seconded by s 
atalie O en  t e resol tion as appro ed by t e 

meeting it  all members oting in t e a rmati e

Interest Rebate
Secretary  aria Ri as c illan  on be al  o  t e 
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Eugene Stephenson Atwell,
General Manager

oard o  irectors  presented t e ollo ing resol tion 
to t e meeting

Be It Resolved at t e nn al eneral eeting 
appro e t e recommendation o  t e oard o  

irectors re t e payment o  an interest rebate o  
 on all interest paid on loans or t e nancial 

year ended ecember   s c  interest 
rebate to be credited to members’ loan acco nt

On a motion by s ian ope  and seconded by s 
atalie O en  t e resol tion as appro ed by t e 

meeting it  all members oting in t e a rmati e

27.0 OTHER BUSINESS

r  C t bert racey commented on t e declining 
attendance trend o  t e members ip at t e   e 
s ggested per aps c anging t e day o  t e ee  t e 
en e and time may be a deciding actor in t e decline   

e C airman indicated t at a s r ey ill be done to 
determine at t e members pre er

28.0 VOTE OF THANKS

s erri nn osep rat aite t an ed lmig ty 
Fat er or li e  diligence  bot  nancially and personally  
t e ono rable R dranat  ndarsing  or is Feat re 

ddress  t e ditors  ontgomery and artners 
or t eir ser ice  Con erge Creati e or t e design o  

t e nn al Report  St dio Wor s or t e p otograp s  
t e note ta ers or t eir ser ice  So nd E ects or t e 
so nd system  s  loria a id and er team or t e 
catering  ars imited or t e ospitality  St dio Wor s  
p otograp er o  t e day  S Sec rity or t eir ser ice  
online or t e banner  C  or printing t e broc res  

F ll Us ering ser ice  inda entor or t e decorations  
ion’s C lt ral Centre or t e acilities and t e sta  o  

CECU or t eir onder l or

29.0 PRIZES

s orraine Ragbir  ar eting anager  in ited 
members to loo  belo  t eir seats and indicated t at 

inners o ld be in ited to collect t eir pri es at t e 
concl sion o  t e meeting   S e t an ed t e member 
companies o donated t ese pri es  ere being 
no rt er o cial b siness  t e C airman closed t e 

nn al eneral eeting at  p m

ERR  OSE R W E
Secretary
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PRESENT:
O cers  embers o  anagement

r  o ind a ara  resident
rs  erri nn osep rat aite Secretary to oard o  

 irectors 
 C airperson o
 ye a s Committee

s  ary F llerton ye a s Committee 
 ember 

r  E gene Step en t ell eneral anager

1.0 CALL TO ORDER

CECU’S resident and C airman o  t e proceedings  
r  o ind a ara  called t e meeting to order at 

 p m   ccording to t e report o  t e Credentials’ 
Committee  t ere ere in e cess o   members present 

ereby r  a ara  ga e notice t at t e meeting as 
d ly constit ted

2.0 INVOCATION

e Credit Union rayer as recited by all present

3.0 WELCOME AND OPENING REMARKS

r  o ind a ara  elcomed e eryone to CECU’s Special 
eneral eeting  speci cally called to appro e t e ra t 
ye a s o  t e credit nion   e ye a s Committee  
eaded by rs  erri nn osep rat aite  ad been 
or ing assid o sly on t is doc ment since ly   

t as noted t at t e last time t e CECU’s ye a s 
ad been amended as in ay   s s c  t e ne  
ye a s o ld re ire re ision on a yearly basis to eep 

abreast it  c anges in t e credit nion sector

r  a ara  t an ed members o  t e Co operati e 
i ision or or ing closely it  CECU in bringing t is 

doc ment to r ition   Wit o t t eir assistance and inp t  
it o ld a e been t at more c allenging to prod ce t is 
compre ensi e doc ment   

e t en anded o er t e C air to rs  osep rat aite 
to re ie  t e ye a s or rati cation

Special 
General 
Meeting
Minutes of the Special General 

Meeting Canning’s Employees’ Credit 

Union Co-operative Society Limited 

held on Tuesday, May 20th, 2014

at 5:00 P.M., 10 Victoria Avenue,

Port of Spain
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4.0 DISCUSSION

rs  erri nn osep rat aite ac no ledged and 
t an ed t e ye a s Committee or or ing tirelessly 
since ly  to bring t is doc ment to r ition   S e 
recognised t e embers o  t e ye a s Committee

 r  Step en t ell eneral anager
 rs  ary F llerton ssistant Secretary 

    to t e oard 
 s orraine Ragbir ar eting anager
 r  lenroy Forrester irector
 r  ester amlet  E c sed

e committee began by re ie ing t e Co operati e 
i ision’s ra t odel ye a s ic  ere sed 

as t e benc  mar  or prod cing CECU’s ra t ye
a s   is as rt er compared to CECU’s e isting 
ye a s  e team sed at as nderstood to 

be contained in t e impending legislation and at 
is also re ired by Credit Unions and t e c rrent F U 
re irements as a g ide

n addition  CECU’s ra t ye a s too  into 
consideration t e ig est standards and so g t to 
align CECU it  modern practices   part rom se eral 
internal meetings  t ere as cons ltation it  iaison 
O cers  to om a dra t as presented at a meeting 
in a oya   S e apologised or t e se eral errors 
and d plications contained in t is doc ment   t t is 

eneral eeting t e Resol tion as proposed

n Errata S eet as emailed to members and ploaded 
on t e ebsite   F rt er members at t is Special 

eneral eeting ad a complete doc ment ic  
s o ed  on t e le t side  t e proposed ra t ye a s 
and on t e rig t  CECU’s E isting ye a s to allo  
or comparison o  at is being proposed it  at 

c rrently e ists   n essence  t ere is a di erence in 
dept  clarity and a oc s on acco ntability   

rs  osep rat aite re ie ed t e Credit Union’s ct 
 Section   C apter  ic  is t e la  being sed 

as a g ide in proposing t e c ange to CECU’s ye
a s   e ne  doc ment being presented contains 6 
ye a s

PROPOSED RESOLUTION
Be it resolved that Bye-Laws 1 – 37 of Canning’s 
Employees’ Credit Union Co-operative Society Limited 
be amended and replaced by Bye-Laws 1 – 57.

ember Eli abet  Rap ael re ested t e C air to 
mo e slo ly en re ie ing t e c rrent doc ment  as 
all er notes ad been made on t e initial doc ment 
recei ed   n addition  s  Rap ael accepted t e 
apology made by t e C air

rs  osep rat aite ac no ledged s  Rap ael’s 
re est and begged t e ind lgence o  t e meeting 
t at  a ing re ie ed t e doc ment  a motion be made 
to amend t e n mber o  ye a s on t e Resol tion 
to re ect at is going to be passed   s s c  i  t ere 
is any cla se not in t e proposed ye a s  t is needs 
to be remo ed as t e la  re ires a t ree o rt ’s 
appro al or t e amendments to be passed  ere 
being no rt er estions rom t e oor  rs  osep

rat aite began t e re ie  o  t e ra t ye a s or 
amendment  rati cation

4.1 INTERPRETATION

edra Co  raised t e estion o  t e retention o  t e 
apostrop e at t e end o  Employees’ in t e credit 
nion’s name   ere appears to be inconsistency in 

t e doc ments coming o t rom CECU  as some o  t e 
doc ments a e t e apostrop e and some do not

o t is rs  osep rat aite responded by ad ising 
t at t e name o  t e credit nion is  Canning’s 
Employees’ Credit Union Co operati e Society imited  

ic  is also no n as CECU   o e er  t ere as 
a typograp ical error in t is section ic  omitted 
t e apostrop e rom t e ord Employees’   One 
amendment to t e name as t e insertion o  Credit 
Union in ront o  t e ord Co operati e  ic  as 
ad ised by t e Co operati e i ision as t is de nes t e 
type o  co operati e t at e are

e amendment or t is section is t e apostrop e 
added at t e end o  t e ord Employees’ and t e 
insertion o  Credit Union  Canning’s Employees’ 
Credit Union Co-operative Society Limited.

r  landin re ested clari cation in t e term o  
nacti e ember  compared to elin ent ember

rs  osep rat aite responded by ad ising a 
elin ent ember  o ld not be inacti e as t ey 

are still doing b siness it  t e credit nion  by ay o  
a ing an e isting loan ic  needs to be li idated
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n nacti e ember  can be de ned as a member 
o did not p rc ase at least one s are or a period 

o   mont s or do any ot er b siness it  t e 
credit nion

s s c  t ere are t ree c anges to t is section being

 Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union Co operati e 
Society imited inserting the apostrophe at the 
end of employees and including credit union 
before co-operative

 oint   t is as been e panded to read as 
ollo s   An Inactive Member  can be de ned 

as a member who did not purchase at least one 
share for a period of 12 months or do any other 
business with the credit union.

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  nterpretation  by s o  o  ands t is section 

as accepted by all

4.2 NAME, REGISTERED ADDRESS AND 
 AREA OF OPERATIONS

is area as been e panded by comparison it  t e 
model  ere t e credit nion’s name is correctly stated 
and t e area o  operations

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  ame  Registered ddress and rea o  
Operations  by s o  o  ands t is section as accepted 
by all

4.3 OBJECTIVES

s C andra ali a ara  raised a estion abo t ii  
ic  spea s to pro iding a so rce o  credit in t e orm 

o  loans to members or pro ident and or prod cti e 
p rposes at legitimate rates o  interest   o e er in 
s b section iii t is only spea s to granting o  loans to 
members on t e sec rity o  real property   W y does 
t is not incl de rates o  interest

ter m c  debate  rs  osep rat aite en ired 
o  s  a ara  er resol tion to t e iss e ig lig ted  
gi en er legal bac gro nd

n response  s  a ara  stated it as er 
nderstanding t at all t e loans o ld be sec red by 
ay o  sing t e member’s s ares

r  o ind a ara  en ired i  a resol tion can be passed 
to e ecti ely combine points ii and iii nder s b section 

s  a ara  re ested some time to orm late t e 
proper ording or combining t ese points and s pport 
t is matter

s Eli abet  Rap ael stated t at CECU also gi es 
C aracter oans ic  are nsec red loans  and m st 
be ta en into consideration in point ii

rs  osep rat aite rt er as ed s C andra ali 
a ara  to incl de C aracter oans in t e re ording  

combining o  points   ii and iii

Rati cation o  t is section as placed on old pending 
in ormation recei ed rom s  a ara

e proposed c ange to b ii reads as ollo s   Providing 
a source of credit in the form of loans to members for 
provident and/or productive purposes at legitimate 
rates of interest, subject to security provided by the 
member in the form of real property and/or personal 
assets including shares.

e proposed c ange to b iii is   Unsec red 
C aracter oans

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  Ob ecti es  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all

4.4 MEMBERSHIP

4.4.1 QUALIFICATION

rs  osep rat aite pointed o t t e remo al o  
s b members  ereby all members no  are classi ed 
as ll members

ember rom t e oor s ggested t at  be spelt o t 
to  rinidad and obago

edra Co  estioned point g  y ermanent 
ers s Contract and does t is spea  to only 

employees o  CECU

rs  osep rat aite con rmed t at point g re ers 
to CECU employees only   is point as ta en rom 
t e odel  ic  see s to pro ide ob sec rity or 
t e employee
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s Co  stated er reason or as ing is t at t e trend 
today is or most obs to be Contract al

s C andra ali a ara  raised t e point o  concern in 
a  et er t e ye a s too  into consideration Sole 

raders and at criteria t e oard o  irectors ses to 
appro e bona de employees

n response to t e point raised by s  a ara  rs  
osep rat aite stated t at CECU’s c rrent bond 

only co ers companies and employees  cons ltants o  
t ese companies   e credit nion as not gone so ar 
as e panding t e bond to incl de Sole raders   is is 
somet ing t at can be re ie ed at a later date  b t not 
on a matter c rrently being tabled at oard le el

ertaining to t e point g  raised by s Co  
consideration is being gi en to remo e t e ord 

ermanent  and a e it read as  Employees of the 
Society who are 18 years and over.

s a ara  estioned point b  o  t e board 
appro ing employees o  associated companies and 

et er d e diligence is gi en to appro ing t ese 
members   On at basis does t e board appro e 
employees o  associated companies

r  o ind a ara  responded by sing t e e ample o  
t e S  ro p o ering  Ser ices to t e credit nion 
and o ld be ie ed as an associated company   So ar 
as a de nition is concerned  an associated company is 
one o is o ering a ser ice to t e credit nion or one 

ere t ere is a b siness relations ip it  CECU

s a ara  e pressed er discom ort it  t e concept  
as it raises estions it  t e appro al being made 
by t e oard o  irectors   So  by e tension  i  a Sole 
rader is pro iding a ser ice to CECU y t en is e not 

allo ed entry into t e credit nion

s Co  raised a estion pertaining to t e s b ecti ity o  
point  t e opening o  t e members ip and remo al 
o  s bs   E actly at criteria does t e oard se to 
appro e members in t is section  as appro al is made at 
t e discretion o  t e board ic  seems ite s b ecti e

r  o ind a ara  so g t to ali y t e reasoning 
be ind point  and ere t e credit nion is able to 
e pel t e member nder t e section E p lsion’ i  or 
some reason t e oard nds t e member not s itable  
t ere is a process ic  t e oard m st ollo

ere are o r c anges to t is section

 Employees of Associated Companies approved 
by the Board of Directors (b)

 Spell out Trinidad and Tobago (d-ii)
 Employees of the Society who are 18 years of age 

and over (g)
 otwithstanding Bye-Law .3, persons who were 

granted membership in the Society and no longer 
qualify for membership in accordance with Bye 
Law .1 may continue to be members at the 
proper discretion of the Board. 

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  ali cation  by s o  o  ands t is section 

as accepted by all

4.4.2 ADMISSION

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  dmission  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all

4.4.3 TERMINATION

s C andra ali a ara  as ed or clari cation it  
regard to t e term insanity  as contained in b

rs  rat aite stated t at t e la s o  t e Society are 
also go erned nder t e la s o  t e land   ere ore  
t e term insanity  o ld be co ered nder t e ental 

ealt  ct o  rinidad and obago

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  ermination  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all

4.4.4 EXPULSION

s Co  estioned i  nder b  a time rame 
o ld be gi en or noti ying t e member  as opposed 

to a time rame being gi en in c   For a le el o  
consistency  it o ld be ise or a time rame to be 
a ed to t e member being ser ed

s a ara  indicated t at t e oard m st rst be 
gi en notice o  t e iolation  ic  t e oard t en 
re ers to a  and only a ter a determination by 
t e oard can t e member be ser ed it  notice   

o e er  t ere m st be a process ollo ed and a 
clear r ling by t e oard
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e in elema e re ested a c ange in b rom 
e  to t e member

e ne  ording rom b is as ollo s   Within 15 
days of a nding being made by the Board of Directors, 
a concise statement in writing of the grounds alleged 
for such e pulsion must rst have been served upon 
the member and the member must also have been 
given a reasonable opportunity of being heard in his 
own defence.  The member shall also be entitled to be 
represented at any hearing by a person of his choice.

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  E p lsion  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all

5.0 UNCLAIMED SHARES/
 DIVIDENDS/BONUS

rs  osep rat aite stated t at t is section as not 
incl ded in CECU’s pre io s ye a s b t as ta en 
rom t e model

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  Unclaimed S ares i idends on s  by s o  
o  ands t is section as accepted by all

6.0 LIABILITY

s C andra ali a ara  re ested clari cation in t e 
term iability’  as good go ernance o  t e oard is 
itally important so members do not lose t eir assets   
t is e tremely important t at embers nderstand t is 
section and t e implications in ol ed

r  o ind a ara  made re erence to t e ominating 
Committee ic  as o er t e years bro g t capable 
persons to ser e t e Credit Union and be assid o s in 
t e disc arge o  t eir d ties   s s c  t is lessens t e 
li eli ood o  a member losing t eir li e sa ings

r  landin ad ised members to ta e a een interest in 
t eir credit nion  ic  incl ded eeping t e oard o  

irectors on t eir toes and demanding acco ntability

n an e ort to o er clari cation to t e iss es being 
raised nder t is section  r  errence les o  t e 
Co operati e i ision stated t at embers a e a d ty 
to elect good management  o o ld be igilant in 
t e disc arge o  t eir d ties   is management m st 
see  t e interest o  t e members o  ic  t e oard o  

irectors m st al ays be in ormed  

rs  osep rat aite stated t at t e acco nts o  t e 
Credit Union are opened on a mont ly basis s o ld 

embers is  to ie  t ese records

s a ara  contin ed to a e c allenges it  t is 
section and in partic lar point b  ic  lea es t e 
member open or an n no n ca se

t t is point and in an e ort to bring com ort to t e 
members  r  les re erred to Section   i and ii o  
t e Credit Unions’ ct

r  Estrada stated t at 6 a is not contained in t e ct  
as s c  t ere is a grey area on t is point

C airperson rs  osep rat aite re ested rt er 
inp t and g idance rom t e Co operati e i ision
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r  les stated t at it is entirely p to t e credit nion 
to a e point 6 a incl ded or not   o e er  points b 
and c do con orm to t e ct

s a ara  responded by stating t at t e estion 
ere is i  t e debt is t at o  t e Society or t e ember   

t as also s ggested t at point a be remo ed  and as 
b and c con orm to t e ct t ey remain part o  t e ye
a s o  CECU

s Co  stated t at s e is o  t e opinion t at Section 6 
is a matter or t e Ed cation Committee  and s o ld 
not be contained in t e ye a s o  t e credit nion

i en t e concerns raised  a decision as ta en by t e 
ma ority o  embers present to a e Section 6 o  t e 

ra t ye a s omitted in its entirety

7.0 NOMINATION OF BENEFICIARY/
 BENEFICIARIES

7.1 APPOINTMENT OF NOMINEE

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  ppointment o  ominee  by s o  o  ands 
t is section as accepted by all

7.2 CHANGE OF NOMINEE

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  C ange o  ominee  by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all

7.3 FEES

r  Estrada raised t e estion o  y is a ee being 
ed in point   b  as t e ad ent o  many c anges 

ta ing place in t e nancial sector   t is is ie  t at 
t e oard s o ld a e t e po er to decide on t e ees 
being ed

e proposed c ange to t e ording o  t is point is as 
ollo s   For each subsequent revocation, nomination or 

variation, the nominator shall pay such fee as prescribed 
by the Board of Directors from time to time, except in 
the case where the original precedes the member.

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  Fees  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all

7.4 PAYMENT OF NOMINEE

There being no further discussion or question on this 
section – Payment of Nominee, by show of hands this 
section was accepted by all.

7.5 LIMIT

rs  dy Roberts ri t  as ed or clari cation on 
at is being prescribed by t e ct

rs  osep rat aite ad ised t at t e ct as a limit 
o   ereby all remaining nds ill go to Estate   

o e er  t e Committee elt t at it as pr dent not to 
ote t e amo nt at t is time

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  imit  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all

7.6 INTESTACY

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  ntestacy  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all

8.0 CAPITAL

rs  osep rat aite stated t at t e table is 
re esting t at t is point remain as in t e c rrent ye
a s and not as ig lig ted in t e ra t   ere ore  t e 

capital o  t e Society s all comprise o   S ares  eposits 
rom embers  oans  e g  ebent res and O erdra ts

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  Capital  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by t e ma ority it  one  abstention to 
remain as re ested by t e table

9.1 SHARES – VALUE OF SHARES

s a ara  begged t e estion y is t ere a ed 
al e a ed to t e cost o  s ares  especially en t e 

economy is c anging at a rapid rate

n response to t is estion  r  a ara  stated t at t e 
al e stated is a nominal one  ereby t e s rpl s is 

distrib ted to t e embers by ay o  i idends
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r  Step en t ell rt er ad ised t at t e s ares 
represented t e al e o  in estment by t e member  

ic  gro s as deposits are made

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  S ares  al e o  S ares  by s o  o  ands 
t is section as accepted by all

9.2 SHARES:  TRANSFER OF SHARES

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  S ares   rans er o  S ares  by s o  o  ands 
t is section as accepted by all

9.3 SHARES:  LIEN ON SHARES & DEPOSITS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  S ares   ien on S ares  eposits  by s o  
o  ands t is section as accepted by all

9.4 SHARES:  WITHDRAWAL OF SHARES

r  Wayne Estrada proposed t at notice re ired by 
a member be red ced to t ree mont s or  days and 
not si  mont s as stated in b

n response to r  Estrada’s proposal  rs  osep
rat aite stated t at t e si  mont s is listed d e to 

in estments made it  earnings deri ed rom member 
deposits  o e er  to date no member as ad to ait 
t is period o  time or t eir re nd

r  o ind a ara  stated t at t is time period acts as 
a b er to protect t e credit nion and by e tension 
its members

r  Estrada stated t at se eral leading credit nions o er 
same day s are it dra als p to a ed amo nt   n 
today’s nancial orld t e motto is tr st and con dence  
and t is long aiting period does not s ggest t at   

o e er  e ill contin e to s pport t e si  mont s 
aiting period ntil t e ct as been amended

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  S ares   Wit dra al o  S ares  by s o  o  
ands t is section as accepted by t e ma ority it  

t ree persons oting against   

10 DEPOSITS

s Eli abet  Rap ael ig lig ted er ob ection to 
d  in so ar as many Retirees se t e credit nion 

or lodging t eir li e sa ings and a e t eir pensions 
coming to t e ordinary deposits   ere ore  it is 
ad ised to speci y ic  o  t e deposit acco nts t e 
re ired notice is needed or

s s c  t e proposed c ange to t e ording o  t is 
point is as ollo s   The board may require a member 
wanting to ma e a withdrawal of a xed deposit to give 
a written notice not exceeding 1  days.

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  eposits  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all

11 APPLICATION OF FUNDS

s Co  so g t clari cation on t is section  as it seems 
to be t e collecti e nds o  t e Society   o e er  
t is as co ered in Section   s s c  section b 
appears to be red ndant as it is dealt it  nder 
Section b

n response to t e abo e  rs  osep rat aite 
proposed t at b be remo ed rom t e ra t ye a s

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  pplication o  F nds  by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all it  t e recommended 
amendment to omit b

12. INVESTMENTS

s a ara  so g t clari cation on b it  regard 
to sec rities

r  o ind a ara  noted t at t is matter is contained 
in d  ereby CECU as to see  permission rom t e 
Commissioner to in est in a ond   Once permission is 
granted t e credit nion ill be allo ed to ma e s c  
an in estment

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  n estments  by s o  o  ands t is section 

as accepted by all

13. DISTRIBUTION OF SURPLUS

s Rap ael stated t at it  regard to b    di idend 
on s ares not e ceeding t e ma im m as prescribed in 
t e Reg lations   ere is no ma im m as t at as been 
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remo ed   t is st a di idend on s ares  t ere ore  not 
e ceeding t e ma im m needs to be remo ed

t as agreed t at t e ne  ording or b is as 
ollo s   A dividend on shares.

s Rap ael so g t clari cation on t e meaning o  e   
n onorari m to any non salaried o cer   

rs  osep rat aite responded by stating t at in 
Section  o  t e c rrent ye a s  no onorari m 
is paid to members o  t e oard o  irectors   e 

oard is see ing by ay o  t e ra t ye a s to ma e 
pro ision or an onorari m to be paid to O cial 
O cers o  t e oard o  irectors and Committees    

ere ore  t e old Section  o ld be remo ed

s  Rap ael rt er eried to at o ld t e 
onorari m be tied

rs  osep rat aite stated t at t e credit nion 
o ld need to ma e a policy ic  o tlines t e 

granting o  t e onorari m   s s c  a proposal o ld 
a e to be presented to t e nn al eneral eeting 

or appro al on t is matter   is pro ision merely 
allo s or t e incl sion o  t e section on payment o  an 
onorari m to oard and Committee embers
s  Rap ael stated t at s e belie e t is section needs 

to be e panded to re ect  n onorari m to any non
salaried o cer based on t e recommendation at t e 

nn al eneral eeting

r  landin eried to at does t e matter o  payment 
o  an onorari m relate as e is ie ing section 

rs  osep rat aite made re erence to er apology 
at t e beginning o  t e meeting  ic  stated t at 
rom Section 6  o  t e pre io s ra t t ere ere 

d plications compared to at is in t e c rrent ye
a s   t m st be noted t at c rrently t e only persons 

being paid an onorari m are t e Secretary and 
ssistant Secretary

r  landin rt er stated t at an important doc ment 
o  t is nat re s o ld be prepared ell in ad ance o  
t e meeting and circ lated to all members or t eir 
re ie  since e only recei ed t is doc ment on is ay 
to t e meeting

s Co  eried i  t is meeting 
o ld be ordering t e distrib tion 

o  s rpl s or a recommendation 
o ld be made by t e oard at t e 
nn al eneral eeting

o t is rs  osep rat aite 
responded t at t e oard ill 
be making a recommendation 
to be tabled at t e ne t nn al 

eneral eeting or t e 
members’ appro al

s  Co  rt er eried a 
conditionality ill be incl ded in 

e to g ard against persons 
making di erent recommendations 
rom t e oor   n addition  at 

are t e criteria to be sed

rs  osep rat aite stated 
t at or all istrib tion o  S rpl s  
t e oard as to present to 
t e embers ip at t e nn al 

eneral eeting a ll proposal 
it  e planations or appro al   

24 2014 Annual Report
Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union



252014 Annual Report
Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union

ere ore  t e detail o  o  t e onorari m is to 
be paid ill need to be presented to t e embers  
similarly to t e payment o  a i idend based on t e 
res lts   Eac  year t e embers ip ill a e to appro e 
t e onorari m to be paid to O cers  based on t e 
members recommendations o  prod cti ity by t e 
o cers   s s c  t e ant m o  onorari m proposed 
or payment m st be presented to t e embers ip on 

an ann al basis

rs  dy Roberts ri t  en ired i  payments to t e 
Secretary and ssistant Secretary are ad ised by t e 

eneral eeting on t e amo nts to be paid   

rs  osep rat aite stated t at c rrently t e 
Secretary recei es an onorari m o   and t e 

ssistant Secretary   is practice as been in 
place or se eral years  b t as not been agreed to at 
an nn al eneral eeting

rs  Roberts ri t  clari ed i  t is o ld no  c ange as 
t ey ill be incl ded in t e proposal it  ot er o cers

n response  rs  osep rat aite con rmed t at 
payment o  an onorari m to t e Secretary and 

ssistant Secretary ill also be incl ded in t e proposal 
to be presented at eac  nn al eneral eeting

C anges to t is section are as ollo s

b   A dividend on shares.

e   An honorarium to any non-salaried of cer subject 
to approval by the Annual General Meeting.

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  istrib tion o  S rpl s  by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all

14. PROVISION FOR PUBLIC, CO OPERATIVE 
 OR CHARITABLE PURPOSE

t t is point t e C airperson ig lig ted t at t e ra t 
ye a s ent rom Section  to   is as an 

omitted section in t e errata s eet  b t is a part o  t e 
Co operati es odel ye a s   s s c  rs  osep

rat aite read t is section  Provision For Public, 
Co-operative or Charitable Purpose  and s ggested 
t at it be incl ded in t e ra t ye a s as it speaks to 

at e are as a credit nion

n ormation contained is as ollo s   With the approval 
of the Commissioner, the general meeting shall have 
power after making the prescribed payment to the 
reserve fund to; 

a. Set aside a sum not exceeding 10% of its net 
surplus; and

b. At any time utilize that sum in contributing to 
any public, co-operative or charitable purpose

 ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 
t is section  ro ision For blic  Co Operati e 
or C aritable rpose  by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all and ill t ere ore be 
incl ded in t e ye a s

15. INTERIM BONUS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  nterim on s  by s o  o  ands t is section 

as accepted by all

16. RESERVE FUND

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  Reser e F nd  by s o  o  ands t is section 

as accepted by all

17. EDUCATION FUND

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  Ed cation F nd  by s o  o  ands t is section 

as accepted by all

18. GENERAL MEETINGS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  eneral eetings  by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all

19. NOTICE OF MEETINGS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  otice o  eetings  by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all

20. ADJOURNMENT/DISSOLUTION OF 
 GENERAL MEETINGS

e C airperson stated t at t is section as been 
incl ded in t e ra t ye a s based on t e odel  

ic  as not incl ded in o r c rrent ye a s  
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ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 
t is section  d o rnment issol tion o  eneral 

eetings  by s o  o  ands t is section as accepted 
by all

21. VOTING

r  Estrada stated t at e does not see t e rele ance 
and applicability o  e  o e er  it co ld be 
applicable or oard and Committee eetings

rs  osep rat aite s ggested it co ld be modi ed 
to read   o person may be present or vote at any 
meetings of the Board or Committees of the Society 
when any matter is being decided in which he has a 
direct or indirect interest.

ter disc ssion among members present  it as 
recommended t at section e be remo ed in its 
entirety  as it is not alid

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  oting  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all it  t e remo al o  section    e

22. POWERS AND DUTIES OF ANNUAL 
 GENERAL MEETING

r  Estrada raised a concern abo t Order o  siness at 
eneral eeting  i  t is as t e mandate or order o  

b siness at t e general meeting

rs  osep rat aite stated t at t e Order o  
siness at eneral eetings is indeed t e order to 

be ollo ed  o e er t is does not in any ay pro ibit 
incl sion o  anot er point as seen t   is section is 
incl ded or completeness and it is proposed making 
an ad stment to  to read  ominating Committee 
Report to replace t e ord Report

s a ara  so g t clari cation on at s e 
represented by appro ing t e ma im m liability o  t e 
Society and t e meaning o  C’ mean at t e end o  
t is item i

r  Step en t ell stated t at ma im m liability speaks 
to t e ma im m t e credit nion can borro  s o ld 
t ere e er be a need or borro ing  and t is sets a limit 
to o  m c  co ld be borro ed

s  a ara  stated nless t is is t e ording o  t e 
la  t is point does not seem to represent at as 

clari ed   ere is no ne s to borro ing or t e ability 
o  t e credit nion to raise nds t ro g  borro ing

t t is time r  les o  t e Co operati e i ision made 
re erence to Section  Reg lation  S b Section  
o  t e ct pertaining item i in t e ra t ye a s

s s c  it as con rmed t at t e ording or section 
i o ld be impro ed on and restated

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 
t is section  o ers and ties o  nn al eneral 

eeting  by s o  o  ands t is section as accepted 
by all it  c anges to i and ominations Committee 
Report to replace t e ord Report nder o  siness at 

eneral eeting

23. GENERAL RULES FOR THE BOARD 
 AND COMMITTEES

e C airperson stated t at as t is section as many 
s b sections  it o ld be rati ed one at a time

23-a: - DEFINITION (Board of Directors)
rs  Roberts ri t  did not see any in ormation 

pertaining to t e d ties o  t e oard o  irectors 
a ing a clear s per isory role on t e management o  

t e credit nion’s records   e oard needs to be clear 
t at all records are kept and sec red in accordance 

it  t e legislation  ere by  i  t e Co operati e 
e elopment i ision as to re est in ormation t is 

can be presented in order

r  o ind a ara  stated t at t ere are stat tory 
and legal re irements t at t e management o  
t e credit nion reports to t e oard at eac  oard 

eeting  or e ample  compliance nder t e Financial 
ntelligence ct ere er appro als are re ired rom 
t e Commissioner’s department   s s c  t e Finance 

anager as to ens re t at si  years o  nancial records 
are kept and properly stored  and also reported on   

ere ore  t e oard clearly nderstands t at it as 
t e nal responsibility in ens ring t at compliance it  
record keeping  stat tory re irements and reporting 
properly ad ered to   n t is regard  t e t ree senior 
managers o  t e credit nion are responsible or t e 
proper r nning o  t e credit nion and are d ty bo nd 
to present reports at eac  oard eeting

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 
section a  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all present
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23-b: - COMPOSITION (BOD)
s Rap ael estioned et er t ere o ld be a 

time limit set or t e oard to ser e  as set or t e 
s per isory committee   is also orms part o  t e 
recommendation or t e proposed legislation and 

o ld CECU pgrade its ye a s to con orm to t e 
n mber o  terms t at a oard ember can ser e

e C airperson stated t at t is matter as not 
considered  and as s c  ill be tabled or consideration 

en t e legislation as been passed nless t e 
meeting is es to disc ss ot er ise

r  Francis stated t at i  e e pect t e legislation to be 
en orced  e need to be a ead o  t e legislation

e C airperson asked t e Co operati e i ision to clari y 
t e term limit being recommended in t e legislation

r  les stated t at t e proposed legislation carries 
t o terms ic  is si  years

r  Estrada stated t at e is com ortable it  at is 
in t e ra t ye a s  ntil t e legislation as been 
passed as t ere is c rrently arg ment it  t e mbrella 
body and a proposal to get t is point e pelled rom 
t e legislation   

t t is point  t e C airperson stated t at t ere are t o 
matters at and or acceptance  

 o incl de term limits  4 persons in favour of 
this proposal

 For t e e isting point to remain as is ntil 
legislation as been passed  majority in favour 
of this point.

rs  Roberts ri t  s ggested t at t ere be no ed 
statement in t e ra t a s o  t e credit nion  and it 
s o ld st state to re er to t e ct   is o ld speak 
to longe ity o  t e doc ment  especially since e are 
going or ard

r  Estrada belie ed t at t e Ed cation Committee 
needs to be in ol ed  as t e term e are speaking 
abo t today states t at en yo  are oted in re ires 
yo  to be in o ce or t ree years  as against e t ree 
year terms

e C airperson t en p t t e estion to t e oor to 
a e t e cla se  Term Limits as prescribed by the 

Law be included in 23-b.

o t is t e oting on t e abo e is as s c
 One in favour
 Majority against

ere ore  t e C air con rmed t at at is c rrently 
being carried in t e ra t ye a s remains

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 
section b  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all present

23-c:  ELIGIBILITY
ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 

section c  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all present

23-d:  POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD
s Co  asked or clari cation on d ii  is t e 
oard no  being gi en t e po er to manage t e 

operations o  t e credit nion in partic lar to iring 
and ring o  employees

e C air stated t at t is point came rom t e odel 
ye a s and as not co ered in t e c rrent ye
a s   t is t e practice t at t is matter be delegated 

to t e anager

n response  s Co  stated t at t e point speci cally 
states may  ic  states t at t e oard still as t e 
po er to ire and re

s s c  it as recommended t at item d ii be 
deleted in its entirety   All present were in favour of 
this deletion.

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 
section d  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all present it  t e deletion o  d ii

23-e:  LIMITATIONS
ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 

section e  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all present

23-f:  DISQUALIFICATION
r  Estrada stated t at e is concerned t at t ere is 

no point co ering ali cations or t e oard   is 
point is omitted in many Credit Unions’ ye a s   t 

as rt er s ggested t at t is item be re ie ed and 
incl ded in CECU’s ye a s  as t e is ali cation is 
ery m c  sed to ali y persons



28 2014 Annual Report
Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union

e C air accepted r  Estrada’s recommendation and 
en ired i  e o ld like to see t is point incl ded in 
t e ra t ye a s or i  t is can be orm lated into a 

olicy oc ment ic  o ld s pport t e ork o  t e 
ominations Committee

n response  r  Estrada stated t at is pre erence as 
or t is point to be stated in t e ye a s o  t e credit 
nion   ere are items it in t e c rrent ra t ye
a s ic  can be sed to orm late t is point   One 

mandatory point is t at t e ember m st a e sa ed 
on t eir s ares to ali y t em   aybe in terms o  
timing it is not appropriate no  b t it is a point t at 
s o ld be e amined closely or incl sion at a later date

r  les rein orced t e point raised by r  Estrada  
by stating t at it  t e ad ent o  ne  legislation t ere 

o ld be t and proper criteria or oard embers   
W en t e legislation is passed CECU may is  to a e 
t is point incl ded in t e ye a s ic  o ld seek to 

ali y persons to be oard embers

t as agreed t at t is matter ill be re ie ed and a 
policy be proposed at t e ne t nn al eneral eeting 
or a Special eneral eeting or incorporation in t e 

ye a s   is policy doc ment ill be orked on by 
t e ye a s Committee

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 
section  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all present

23-g:  MEETINGS
ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on section 
g  by s o  o  ands t is section as accepted by all 

present it  one  abstention

23-h:  PROCEDURE AT BOARD MEETINGS
ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 

section  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all present

23-i:  LEAVE OF ABSENCE
s a ara  interpreted t is section to be someone o 

is absent or a period o  time and d e to ret rn   n an 
earlier pro ision it spoke abo t t e dis ali cation o  a 

oard ember i  t ey are c arged it  an o ence or 
in ol es dis onesty   S e asked or clari cation

e C airperson stated t at item i  stated t at 
s o ld t e member be c arged e can take a lea e o  

absence pending dgment    yo  are ac itted  t en 
yo  can ret rn to yo r post   e member o ld not 
lose t eir oard position  as e may be a ay or t ree  
consec ti e meetings

s  a ara  stated t at t e point s o ld incl de
pending t e completion or concl sion o  t e matter   

r  Estrada mo ed to a e t is entire point remo ed 
rom t e ye a s  as a nancial instit tion t e allmark 

comes it  r st and Con dence  is seemed 
inappropriate or t e ye a s b t co ld be addressed 
by t e oard in a olicy oc ment

e C airperson disagreed in t at it pointed to CECU’s 
ig  standards and olds its oard members acco ntable 
or t eir actions  ile gi ing pro ision or t e member to 

step do n gi en t e se erity o  is o ence

r  Estrada reiterated t at it does not necessarily a e 
to be contained in a ye a  b t orm lated in a olicy 

oc ment ic  speaks to t and proper and tabled at 
an nn al eneral eeting

e C airperson accepted t e point raised by r  
Estrada and ga e t e ndertaking t at CECU o ld 
orm late a doc ment to deal it  t and proper ic  
ill be tabled at t e ne t nn al eneral eeting b t  

in t e interim  lea e t is point as is in t e ra t ye a s

r  Estrada stated t e e o ld not s pport t is 
position or e en i  t e person is not con icted  t e 
indi id al’s name is tarnis ed and associated it  
t e instit tion

For t e p rpose o  t e ra t ye a s  t e C air p t to 
t e oor in de ning t e le el o  cond ct or ic  t e 
credit nion stands  et er or not t is point s o ld be 
retained or e cl ded as s ggested by r  Estrada

r  Estrada con rmed t is point  and rt er asked or 
t e oard’s ndertaking t at it o ld de elop policies 
to deal it  iss es o  t is nat re   is o ld also 
incl de a Code o  Et ics as de ned by t e oard

e C airperson stated t at be ore t is point is e cl ded  
t ere are t o t ings ic  m st be noted ere   

i  at in de ning t and proper ic  e a e 
promised to p t in place  t at t e policy be 
dra ted de ning t and proper ic  o ld take 
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care o  t is point raised by r  Estrada   is ill 
be presented at t e ne t nn al eneral eeting 
in arc  

ii  t t e time o  presenting t is policy  a motion 
is made or t e e cl sion o  point i  rom 
t e ye a s   is point o e er is de ning a 
le el o  cond ct e pected by oard embers  
not it standing and accepting t e point made by 

r  Estrada

t t is point t e C air posed t e estion to t e oor 
et er t e entire section be remo ed or st 

r  les stated t at  ile t is section is in t e odel 
ye a s  CECU members can decide i  t ey is  to 

keep t e cla se or a e it remo ed

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on section 
i ere it as agreed t at  be retained  by s o  

o  ands t is section as accepted by all present it  
one abstention

23-j:  CONFLICT OF INTEREST
s Eli abet  Rap ael is o  t e belie  t at no member 

s o ld be permitted to old o ce in CECU ile 
olding o ce in anot er credit nion

r  les clari ed t at t e modern trend is to a e 
members only ser e one credit nion oard as t ere can 
be a con ict o  interest

s s c  t e ording or t is section is c anged and 
no  reads as ollo s   o Member shall be permitted 
to hold of ce in Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union 
Co-operative Society Limited while holding of ce in 
another Credit Union Co-operative Society.

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 
section  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all present

23-k:  CONFIDENTIALITY
ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 

section k  by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all present

23-l:  RESPONSIBILITY
s C andrakali a ara  en ired i  t e embers o  

t e oard o  irectors ere co ered nder liability 
ins rance   S e rt er proposed t o c anges to point 
 o  t is section

 C ange ordinary men o  b siness to reasonable 
men o  b siness as t is is t e standard Englis  
or t ese la s

 nsert t e ord ra d  be ore negligence

Wit  t e proposed c anges t e section no  reads   
In their conduct of the affairs of the Society the 
members of the Board and Committees shall at all 
times observe the Act, the Regulations and the Bye-
Laws and shall exercise the prudence and diligence for 
reasonable men of business and shall be responsible 
for any loss sustained through fraud, negligence or act 
contrary to the Act, the Regulations, the Bye-Laws or 
Rules made thereunder.

Wit  regard to t e ins rance co erage  t e C air stated 
t at c rrently t ere is no co erage b t t is is somet ing 
t at co ld be e amined going or ard

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on section 
l  by s o  o  ands t is section as accepted by all 

present it  t e recommended c anges

24. BORROWING POWERS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  orro ing o ers  by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all

25. SECURITY FOR FINANCIAL OFFICERS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  Sec rity or Financial O cers  by s o  o  
ands t is section as accepted by all

26. RULES

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  R les by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all

27. NOMINATING COMMITTEE

r  Step en t ell stated t at t ere as one 
omission in t is ra t ye a s ere t e ominating 
Committee o ld be c arged it  t e responsibility to 
identi y s itable candidates or all positions sing t e t 
and proper g idelines    t e committee s o ld ail to 
nd s itable candidates  t en t e consens s o ld be 

to take nominations rom t e oor at t at time   
n responding to t is statement  r  Estrada stated 
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t at t e oard s o ld not appoint t e ominating 
Committee   Rat er t is s o ld be tabled at an nn al 

eneral eeting or t e embers ip to appoint t is 
Committee   at process is m c  more progressi e  

ic  as been adopted by ot er credit nions

r  o ind a ara  noted t at CECU o ld be p t 
in a di c lt position s o ld it not be able to select a 

ominating Committee ntil t e ne t nn al eneral 
eeting   e s ggested lea ing t is point as is ntil it is 

tabled at t e  ne t arc  

 ember rom t e oor eried i  b  can still stand 
gi en in ormation presented by r  t ell

n response  r  les stated t at i  t ere is not t e 
re ired n mber o  persons selected by t e ominating 
Committee t en t e matter ill a e to be opened to 
t e embers ip or selection rom t e oor   t needed 
to be decided ic  r le o ld be adopted

r  a ara  responded t at CECU does not is  
nominations to come rom t e oor   Rat er  t at t e 

ominations Committee a e ll a t ority to select 
and inter ie  prospecti e candidates to ll all acant 
positions in t e credit nion

r  les rt er stated t at i  t e ominations 
Committee is nable to present t e re ired n mber o  
candidates  t en t e oor s o ld be opened

s Co  stated t at s e does not s pport t e c ange to 
t is item  as t e ct in no ay s pports t is matter as t 
and proper

n t is regard  t e recommended c ange to b  is as 
ollo s   If the required number of nominations are 

not obtained by the ominations Committee then the 
oor will be opened for nominations at the Annual 

General Meeting.

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  ominating Committee by s o  o  ands 
t is section as accepted by all it  one  member 
against  it  t e c ange to b

28. MINUTES OF MEETINGS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  in tes o  eetings by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all

29. MOTIONS

r  Wayne Estrada asked t e meaning o  a Resol tion  
as no member s o ld be able to mo e a motion on 
t eir re est

r  les clari ed t at resol tions and motions are one 
o  t e same    resol tion is a motion t at is p t to t e 
oor  ic  can only be tabled once recei ed in t e 

stip lated n mber o  days   o e er  i  at t e general 
meeting a motion is es to be mo ed  it is p to t e 
C airperson to accept t is motion   ere ore  t is bye 
la  is clear

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  otions by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all

30. AGE QUALIFICATION OF OFFICERS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  ge ali cation o  O cers by s o  o  ands 
t is section as accepted by all

31. DUTIES OF OFFICER

 member rom t e oor stated t at Secretary c  be 
ritten in more modern lang age  and proposed to 

c ange cond ct  to attend to

e proposed amendment to Secretary c  is as 
ollo s   To attend to the Society’s correspondence.

e C airperson stated t at nder ssistant Secretary 
t ere is no b  so t ere ore a  needs to be remo ed

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on all 
s b sections  ties o  O cers by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all it  t e amendment to 
Secretary  c

32. DUTIES OF GENERAL MANAGER

ter m c  disc ssion  it as s ggested to insert t e 
ord eneral  be ore anager and remo e Or 
reas rer  since CECU does not a e a reas rer  only a 

Finance anager

n addition  t e insertion o  point i  as made  
ic  reads as ollo s   He shall be responsible for all 

statutory and regulatory requirements.
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ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on 
t is section  ties o  eneral anager by s o  o  
ands t is section as accepted by all and it  t e 

recommended amendments

33. CONTRACTS OF EMPLOYMENT

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  Contracts o  Employment by s o  o  ands 
t is section as accepted by all

34. SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Clari cation as so g t by a ember rom t e oor 
as to t e correct composition o  t is committee   e 
committee as e members  so   members and  
alternates as stated  is incorrect   t s o ld read  e 
members and t o alternates

e correction as d ly accepted by t e C air

For contin ity on t is committee  r  Estrada proposed 
t at members be allo ed to ser e or t ree years on a 
rotation basis

e Co operati e S per isor  r  les endorsed 
t e recommendation presented by r  Estrada and 
o ered to pro ide CECU it  s itable ording or 
b  o  t is section

e embers agreed in principle to incl de a 
rotation basis  pending receipt o  ording rom t e 
Co operati e

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  S per isory Committee by s o  o  ands 
t is section as accepted by all pending incl sion o  a 
rotation basis or members and receipt o  ording rom 
t e Co operati e e elopment i ision

35. CREDIT COMMITTEE

e C air noted t at t e amendment nder section  
also applies ere
 

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  Credit Committee by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all pending incl sion o  a 
rotation basis or members and receipt o  ording rom 
t e Co operati e e elopment i ision

36. LOANS TO MEMBERS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  oans to embers by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all

37. EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Wayne Estrada raised t e point regarding c  and 
s ggested t at t e Vice President of the Board be the 
Chairman of the Education Committee.  n t is ay 
t e ision and ission o  t e credit nion o ld be d ly 
re ected and carried o t

n responding to r  Estrada  r  a ara  stated t at 
t e practice in CECU is t at t e ice resident C airs 
t e n estment Committee and to make a c ange at 
t is point o ld be some at di c lt   n addition  
t e impact on making t is c ange o ld need to be 
decided on as t e n estment Committee is t e second 
Re en e stream or t e credit nion

r  Estrada responded t at t e Ed cation Committee is 
a stat tory committee and is a re irement by la

s a ara  opined t at t e Ed cation Committee is 
t e e icle sed to gro ing t e credit nion  ic  is as 
itally important as t e n estment Committee

r  t ell stated t at c rrently t e C airperson o  
t e Ed cation Committee is a member o  t e oard 
o  irectors

ter m c  disc ssion  it as recommended t at   
A member of the Executive Chair the Education 
Committee.  o e er  t e Secretary can be c osen 
among t e committee members

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  Ed cation Committee by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all it  t o against  pending 
adoption o  t e recommendation as listed abo e

38. FINANCE

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  Finance by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all
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39. THE CREDIT UNION SEAL

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  e Credit Union Seal by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all

40. BOOKS AND REGISTERS TO
 BE MAINTAINED

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  ooks and Registers to be aintained  by 
s o  o  ands t is section as accepted by all

41. PASS BOOKS / STATEMENTS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  ass ooks  Statements by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all

42. AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  dit o  cco nts by s o  o  ands t is 
section as accepted by all

43. AGREEMENTS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  greements  by s o  o  ands t is section 

as accepted by all

44. DISPUTE

s a ara  tried to nderstand t e scope o  t is 
section  as it does not incl de a mediation time rame

r  les stated t at t is section deals it  all and or 
any disp tes regarding t e a airs o  t e Society   t 

ic  time r  les read t e ct or all to be clear

s  a ara  responded t at a process and or policy 
needs to be orm lated and in place to andle 
t ese disp tes

r  o ind a ara  stated t at a time rame cannot be 
p t in place as all disp tes are di erent and m st be 
treated di erent in eac  case

n response  s  a ara  stated t at a ali ying ord 
in t e section  i e  nresol ed  be incl ded
 

aking into consideration t e recommendation made  
ollo ing is t e ne  ording or t is section   Any 

unresolved dispute touching the affairs of the Society 
shall be referred to the Commissioner for decision in 
accordance with the Section 7 of the Act and o. 53 
of the Regulations.

dded to t e c ange listed abo e  it as 
recommended t at a olicy oc ment be orm lated 
and appro ed ic  o ld seek to address all isp tes 
be ore t ey are re erred to t e Commissioner

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section  isp tes by s o  o  ands t is section as 
accepted by all it  one  abstention  pending t e 
c ange as listed abo e and t e orm lation o  a olicy 

oc ment on isp tes

45. AMENDMENTS

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section mendments by s o  o  ands t is section 

as accepted by all

46. INTERPRETATION

ere being no rt er disc ssion or estion on t is 
section nterpretation by s o  o  ands t is section 

as accepted by all

e C airperson stated all sections o  t e proposed 
ra t ye a s a e been re ie ed  c anges made and 

adopted by all embers present   

t t is time  t e C air tabled t e Resol tion or 
rati cation by embers present   is reads as 
ollo s   Be it resolved that Bye-Laws 1 – 37 of 

Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union Co-operative 
Society Limited be amended and replaced by Bye-
Laws 1 – 45.

ased on acco nt by embers o  t e Co operati e  it 
as comm nicated t at 42 Members were in favour of 

passing this Resolution.

On be al  o  t e ye a s Committee  rs  osep
rat aite t anked e eryone or t eir al able 

contrib tions to adopting t e ye a s and passing 
t e Resol tion
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r  o ind a ara  t anked all or attending and 
more so or t ose it  staying po er s o ing t eir 
dedication and commitment to t e credit nion to 
a e t ings done in a correct manner   e ne t step 

in t is process is or t e ye a s to be sent to t e 
Commissioner or Re ie  and R ling on implementation 
o  t ese ra t ye a s   n addition  r  a ara  
t anked a Cantina or t eir s pport in pro iding 
re res ments or t is e ent  and noted t at r  Syl ester 
is also a member o  t e oard o is ery s pporti e o  
t e credit nion

r  les  on be al  o  is Co operati e i ision 
colleag es  t anked all or recogni ing t e e tent o  t is 
e ercise   eir contrib tions ere o  great al e to t e 
rati cation o  t is important doc ment ic  g ides 
t e credit nion   s s c  t e resol tion co ld not a e 
passed it o t t eir inp t and s pport   

ere being no rt er matters to be disc ssed t e 
C airperson called t e Special eneral eeting to a 
close at  p m

ERR  OSE R W E
Secretary to Board of Directors
and Chairperson of Bye-Laws Committee
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INTRODUCTION

 as anot er good year or Canning’s Employees’ 
Credit Union as a s rpl s o   as ac ie ed 
be ore t e decrease in t e bad debt reser e o   

is compares a o rably it  t e s rpl s o   
recorded in  CECU’s re en es also e ceeded o r 

 re en es by  dollars

e competiti e en ironment in ic  e operated 
pro ed e tremely c allenging o e er o r aggressi e 
marketing strategies responded e ecti ely res lting 
in CECU granting loans o   in  loans 
ers s  in  e arketing and Credit 

Committees ere t e primary dri ers o  t is increase

ncl ded in t e loans port olio or  are  
ort  o  mortgage loans  is rene ed initiati e as been 

c ampioned by t e eneral anager and as e ceeded 
t e target or mortgages o  6

o r oard o  irectors and Senior anagement team 
contin e to operate t e credit nion in a olistic manner  
W ile e are oc ssed on impro ing re en es e a e 
also taken a stringent approac  to red cing delin ency  

is as allo ed s to obtain appro al to red ce o r 
bad debt reser e by  is  as 
been trans erred to o r income statement as Ot er 
Compre ensi e ncome

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Follo ing t e 6 nd nn al eneral eeting  t e nder
mentioned irectors ere elected to ser e on t e 
E ec ti e Committee

o ind a ara   resident
enny alsa  ice resident
erri nn osep rat aite  Secretary
ary F llerton  sst  Secretary

E gene Step enson t ell  eneral anager  
  E  O cio

Report of 
the Board 

of Directors

31st December 2014
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Ot er ser ing irectors ere

earl tler ope  lenroy Forrester
ester amlet ian ope

S i a ngal Carol Roberts
ester Syl ester C andrakali a ara

lternates   Frank Ri as
 nt ony aingot

e Con enors o  t e respecti e committees ere

CONVENORS COMMITTEES
Carol Roberts Ed cation

o ind a ara  E ec ti e
nior oray man Reso rce

 nd strial Relations
enny alsa n estment
ester Syl ester arketing

S i a ngal n ormation ec nology
re or F ng ominations Committee
ary F llerton elin ency Control

RECORD OF DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2014 TO FEB 2015

ame osition ossible   ttended E c sed bsent
                                                             Attendance
 

o ind a ara  resident    
enny alsa ice resident    
erri Ann osep   rat aite Secretary    
ary F llerton Assistant Secretary      

Carol Roberts irector      
ester amlet irector      
ester Syl ester irector      
lenroy Forrester irector      

S i a ngal irector      
ian ope  irector     6 

C andrakali a ara  irector     6 
earl tler  ope  irector      

Frank Ri as Alternate      
Ant ony aingot Alternate      

MEMBERSHIP

ree ndred and Fi ty Fo r ne  members oined CECU in  an o erall gro t  rate o   o er t e pre io s 
year  CECU’s contin ed compliance dri e in  led to  member acco nts being classi ed as dormant and 
s bse ently closed o  e res lt o  t is as a red ction in t e total members ip rom  in  to  in  

Composition of the membership as at year ending December 31st, 2014

 2014 2013  

Employees  
Relati es 6    
E Employees  
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SHARES

embers’ s ares increased by 6  or 
 to 6  in  compared it  an 

increase o  6 6  or  in  o er  
is red ction in t e gro t  o  members’ s ares 

is partially d e to t e clos re o  dormant acco nts 
totalling 6

FIXED DEPOSITS

Fi ed eposits recorded a decrease o  6  
6  in  o er  rom  to 

 W ile o r e isting deposit rate remains 
competiti e it  ot ers in t e nancial sector  members 
a e contin ed to reallocate t eir nds rom deposit 

acco nts to s are acco nts in order to en oy t e ig er 
rate o  ret rn on t eir in estment

LOANS

otal oan port olio net o  pro isions or losses increased by 6  
rom 6  in  to 6  in  is increase in t e 

port olio as primarily d e to member’s participation in CECU’s loan 
promotions in  

oans O tstanding as at ecember  

Credit Union ersonal oans 6 6
Credit Union ortgage oans  

DELINQUENCY

CECU’s dri e to red ce delin ency contin ed in  res lting in  collected d ring t e year   ased 
on t e s ccess ac ie ed  o r A ditors a e ad ised t at no additional pro ision or delin ent loans o ld be 
re ired  n t is regard  CECU’s oard o  irectors  A ditors and t e Co operati e i ision  appro ed a red ction 
in CECU’s bad debt reser e by  to  ic  as deemed ade ate to co er net loan e pos re

ASSET MIX

            2014            2013
oans 6  6    6  

Cas  and s ort term in estment          
Ot er n estments   6           
Fi ed Assets                                                      6         6 6          
Acco nts Recei able                                         6     6           66

                                                                     255,641,900    100% 228,288,825    100%
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INVESTMENTS

e Cas  and n estment ort olio gre  by 6 or  to  in  rom 6  
in  

Composition o  n estment ort olio as at ecember   RA

2014 2013 

E ities    6     6  6

t al F nds    6      

onds    6     6

Cas   S ort erm eposits           

edi m erm F nds    66       

 135,584,094   100% 124,085,868   100%

re ailing lo  interest rates on in estments  contin ed in  ic  ad ersely a ected CECU’s ret rns rom o r 
n estment port olio  Alt o g  t e in estment income decreased by  in  CECU contin es to maintain a 
di ersi ed in estment strategy  ic  incorporated long term onds  E ities  t al F nds and erm eposits
 

ring t e year  CECU ndertook ne  in estments  s c  as First Citi ens l  City ond  R C ndi id al 
anaged Acco nt and U C ncome and ro t  F nd  anagement ill contin e to seek o t prime in estment 

opport nities ic  ill be in t e best interest o  t e members ip

REVENUE

ross Re en es in  amo nted to  ers s 6  in   nterest income rom loans 
contrib ted appro imately   o  total re en es  ollo ed by in estment income ic  
contrib ted appro imately 6  o  total re en es   

e n mber o  loans generated in  declined to 6  rom 6 6  in  e aggregate al e o  t e loans 
granted in  increased by  to  million rom  million in  
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SOURCES OF REVENUE

           2014           2013
Re en e rom loans     666 66  
Re en e rom in estments     6      
ot er income       6    66        6     6

 15,432,300   100% 14,729,260   100%

USE OF REVENUE
 2014 2013

i idend and Rebate      6    6    
Administrati e costs                   6    
Additions to reser e                  6

ersonnel costs      6    6 6     
oan rotection i e Sa ing    6     6         6

 15,432,300    100% 14,729,260     100%

DIVIDENDS AND INTEREST REBATE

o r oard is pleased to report t at CECU’s net s rpl s in  a ter allocation or stat tory and ot er reser es  
amo nted to  appro imately  abo e o r net s rpl s in  6  ot it standing t e 
c allenging economic en ironment in t e past se eral years  CECU’s strategies a e enabled t e credit nion to 
gro  and contin e to be a strong player in t e nancial ser ices sector
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ased pon t e  nancial per ormance  yo r oard o  irectors recommends a di idend payment o   and 
an interest rebate o    An estimated total o  6  ill be distrib ted

PEARLS  ANALYSIS

 Satis actory Unsatis actory Act al 

rotection oan osses elin ent    mt s          

nstit tional Capital Capital otal Asset                 6

Asset ality

     on Earning Assets otal Assets                    

Rates o  Ret rn and Costs

     et ncome A erage Assets                   

     Operating E pense A erage Assets                     

i idity on Earning i id Assets                     6

Signs o  ro t

     oan ro t  ot speci ed ot speci ed     6

FINANCIAL INTELLIGENCE UNIT (FIU)

n  CECU contin ed to oc s on compliance and 
implementation o  reg lations intended to sa eg ard 
o r Credit Union against oney a ndering and 
Financing o  errorism A CF  as mandated by la  
and implemented by t e Financial ntelligence Unit  
n t is regard  all members o  t e oard  Committees  
Sta  as ell as iaison O cers  completed t e re ired 
ann al training  

ring t e year  CECU as also incl ded among t e 
Credit Unions selected or an On Site  A dit by 
members o  t e F U and Central ank o  rinidad and 
obago  As t e re irements associated it  A

CF  contin e to e ol e CECU remains committed to 
implementing all recommendations as recei ed to 
remain compliant  

EDUCATION 

e importance o  ed cation cannot be o erstated  
t is a sel enlig tening process and is cr cial to t e 
o erall de elopment o  an indi id al and t e society 

at large  CECU as pro ided ed cation and training 
or members  elected representati es  managers and 

employees so t at t ey can e ecti ely contrib te to t e 
de elopment o  t e co operati e

e ollo ing are t e ig lig ts o  o r training 
initiati es in 

Maximising your Potential: elly Ann rabo lay  
Finance anager and orraine Ragbir  arketing 

anager ere bot  part o  a ig  energy capti ating 
lect re series by ilton nt o  nt nternational 
in arc   oti ational speaker and eaders ip 
coac  ilton nt deli ered a ig  impact po er l 
seminar on ma imising yo r potential  ot  alked 
a ay it  practical tools to elp t e organisation 
ac ie e t eir per ormance goals

Clarity on reporting: ice resident  enny alsa and 
Finance anager  elly Ann rabo lay bot  attended 
an in ormati e orks op on Anti oney a ndering 
and Co nter Finance errorism A CF  as seen 
t ro g  t e eyes o  t e A ditor  is seminar osted 
by CA  is once again in line it  CECU’s l lment o  
good go ernance  
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Credit Management: eneral anager  E gene  
S  At ell and Senior oans O cer ebora  

yng attended a t o day orks op on credit 
management  ebora  alked a ay it  kno ledge 
in credit analysis  sec rities management  reco eries 
and collections

New Member Orientation Programme: e Ed cation 
Committee osted a e  ember’s Orientation 

rogramme on Sat rday  A g st rd at t e roo  top 
o  R and Credit Union  enty ne  members attended 
and en oyed t e presentation gi en by r Saa id 

o ammed on entreprene rial training  

Scholarship Grant Programme: CECU osted a small 
SEA rant ceremony on October rd or all recipients  
en st dents o  6 applicants  recei ed grants  based 

on merit  o   in CECU s ares pl s cas  to t e al e 
o   to go to ards books  CECU’s ictoria A en e 
ead o ce as t e en e or t e op  congrat latory 

ceremony  Feat re speaker Celeste A g stine sparked 

t e interest o  t e st dents and parents and as also a 
participant o  CECU’s acation nterns ip rogramme  
A ardees alked a ay it  genero s stationery 
ampers and CECU tokens  

Recipients: Renee art olome  aitlyn ernard  aomi 
Francis  Seirra oindoo  enisa o ell  ayda nte  
C elcie o ammed  S er on oel  ina aty and 
Caitlin Warrick

MARKETING
 
Membership Growth: o g  CECU bro g t in  
ne  members or  t e credit nion as re ected 
a negati e gro t  o   is occ rred as CECU 
remo ed  dormant acco nts rom t eir database  
mo ing members ip rom  to  Amidst 
t is occ rrence  o e er  CECU elcomed o r ne  
member companies  eon Ambrose  Co  Carib Clean 
td  Risk Researc  and abas  edia

New Product - CECU Care: CECU Care maintains t e 
largest association gro p aligned it  Sagicor and 
remains o r ags ip prod ct   members or  
a e so ar signed on to t is brand ne  prod ct and 

are en oying t e bene ts associated it  t e package  
ringing total members to 6  on t e ealt  care plan  

LOAN PROMOTIONS

Se en oan romotions ran or  namely  SOS  
Carni al  i e y  li e  CECU’s ne  and Used Car 
loans  ome repairs and C ristmas S opping 
promotions  ese promotions targeted di erent 
needs o  t e members ip and ere s ccess l as t ey 
represented appro imately  o  t e total al e o  
t e oan port olio

ig lig ts o  t e oan promotions are as ollo s

Live yuh Life!: i e y  i e replaced t e ibes it 
p Campaign in  and as been ery s ccess l  

e campaign  ic  as re amped sing ig er 
loan al es  ran rom April to ly it  6 members 
participating to a loan al e o  6  

Used Car promotion: CECU’s Used Car promotion ad 
ama ing s ccess  CECU’s Sat rday Car promotions it  
on t e spot loans and re ised rates ere ery attracti e 
to t e members ip  For t e year t e sed car port olio 
as seen 6  members p rc asing sed cars at a al e 
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o  6  bringing t e total sed car port olio to 
al e o  6 6

Home Repairs: e ome Repair oan is a ge 
it it  o r members ip  ot only is it dri ing t e 
ortgage port olio as many persons are responding 

to o r great rates it is also generating income  is 
promotion as generated appro imately  million

Mortgage Portfolio: CECU as re ised its ortgage 
olicy and generated additional loans or t is ort olio  

t as allo ed t e member to bene t rom more 
attracti e interest rates and longer terms o  repayment  

e ortgage port olio generated loans o  

Christmas Shopping Promotion: embers took 
t e opport nity to take part in CECU’s C ristmas 
s opping oan it   grand pri es   set  i ing 
room Set and a  piece ining room  generating loan 
income o  

COMMUNICATION

CECU as long adopted social media  email blasts and 
mycec com ebsite as member comm nications 

mec anisms  in tandem it  direct mail and ot er print 
media  CECU contin es to pro ide reg lar pdates 
and c rrent in ormation on o r ebsite mycec
com  as ell as on its Facebook page as a so rce o  
in ormation acebook com mycec  Wit  st  
ans as at Febr ary t   t ere is m c  room or 

gro t  embers are in ited  not st to like’ t e page 
b t to in ite amily members and ello  CECU members 
to oin also   embers are becoming more com ortable 
sing t is or m to e press t eir ie s and seek ad ice   

MEMBER OUTREACH

CECU Care Burn
e nd CECU Care rn started or Carni al  b t 

since members demanded a contin ation  it contin es 
to r n e ery Wednesday  is acti ity represents CECU 
taking care o  members in all aspects o  t eir li es and 
ties in nicely it  t e CECU Care ealt  lan

INTERNSHIP PROGRAMME   
CECU’s rst acation interns ip programme took place 
rom A g st  CECU coordinated nine st dents 
members  orking it  si  companies on a rotational 
basis   All st dents ere e posed to t e orld o  credit 
nionism as ell as gained e perience in t e corporate 

orld to aid in t eir career considerations  is 
programme added to o r commitment to e panding 
o r ser ices to members  enric ing li es  Companies 
t at participated in t is pro ect ere CU A Caribbean  
a Cantina  All Ro nd rading  e to n edical  
assy Stores and CECU  

CREDIT UNION MONTH  
A brig tly decorated o ce re ected t e  
t eme  ocal Ser ice  lobal good  A Customer 
Appreciation day took place on nternational Credit 
Union ay  ealt  Care  C A and t e Cancer obile 
Unit ere present on o r compo nd pro iding basic 
ealt  care ser ices to o r members and ad ertised 

online  On t is day  tea plates ere gi en o t to 
all o passed t ro g  or ser ice  Small tokens ere 
also anded o t to members or t e mont  o  October  
Email lasts ere sent o t ed cating and ig lig ting 
acts abo t t e Credit Union o ement

e Bring It  ime on October st sa  members 
coming o t and oining toget er to celebrate Credit 
nion mont   All Ro nd rading alked it  erk 
ings  S  alked it  c rry d ck and geera c icken 

and assy Stores ead O ce alked it  b rgers to 
s are  We all ad a great time as e s ared la g s and 
en oyed eac  ot er’s company  e response as so 
good t at t is ent re ill be actored in or ne t year 
as e regenerate t e credit nion spirit

Liaison Of cers Recognition: Appreciation or t e 
ol ntary and contin o s ard ork pro ided by iaison 

O cers as s o n at a break ast meeting on o ember 
 iaison O cers ere e posed to a session on 

nancial planning and b dgeting as ell as mandatory 
compliance to Financial ntelligence Unit reg lations
Children’s Christmas Party as a s ccess as  
members and c ildren attended t is e ent ic  
took place on Sat rday  ecember 6   C ildren 
t oro g ly en oyed t eir pony rides  bo ncy castles and 
t e petting oo ile parents en oyed a t ro back to 
ole’ time games

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

CECU stri es to impact t e society positi ely as it 
recognises its role as a credit nion in rinidad and obago  

onations ere gi en to ario s primary and 
secondary sc ools and to c aritable non go ernmental 
organi ations to strengt en t e comm nity bonds in 
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modern day rinidad  obago  ese incl ded t e 
Society o  St  incent e a l  e ydians  e ort o  
Spain ions  e Sc ool or t e ea  United Way  St  
Ant ony’s College  St Francois irls  and t e Armalaya 

resbyterian C rc  Also  t o st dents recei ed 
sc olars ips or ocational training at t e ational 
Centre or ersons it  isabilities
 
OBITUARIES

e oard o  irectors e tends deepest condolences to 
t e berea ed amilies o  members o passed a ay

Deceased Members

Ant ony aptiste So n im
Annand ooc oon Ed ard ro n
Ramdat  C adee Conrad e atas

eter Feli  a ra Friday
S aron lal illicent entor

a i  o ammed artin ong Sing
As ook Rambaran Robert Rambarran
C erry Roberts Elsie Ross

arilyn omas Sonia irado
 
CUNA CLAIM

Ele en oan rotection i e Sa ings Claims amo nting 
to  ere recei ed and represented  o  
t e premi m paid

FAMILY INDEMNITY PLAN

e total members ip in t e plan no  stands at 66 
an increase o   members en compared it  t e 
corresponding period   Forty claims amo nting to 

 ere settled d ring t e year

STAFF APPOINTMENT

o ne  additions ere made to t e CECU amily  n 
o ember  Andre  o ng oined t e organisation 

in t e position o   Assistant and in ecember o  t e 
same year  Syl ia Ramdeo Rams b ag oined CECU 
as t e anagement Administrator  ey bot  bring 

it  t em e perience and arm personalities ic  
e belie e ill en ance CECU’s personali ed c stomer 

ser ice deli ery  

OUTGOING DIRECTORS

n accordance it  ye a s  and  t e Credit and 
S per isory Committees are o tgoing   We t ank t em 
or t eir contrib tions o er t e years   We also record 

o r deepest gratit de or o tgoing irectors enny 
alsa  erri Ann osep rat aite  Carol Roberts  and 
lenroy Forrester   ndi id ally and collecti ely t ey a e 

gi en yeoman ser ice to t e de elopment o  CECU  
edicated oard member Carol Roberts as regret lly 

declined re election  e oard t anks er or er many 
years o  ard ork  lo e and dedication to CECU

Directors at a Glance

2012 – 2015
Carol Roberts lenroy Forrester

enny alsa erri Ann osep rat aite

2013-2016
ian ope  ester amlet
earl  tler ope  S i a ngal

2014– 2017
o ind a ara  ester Syl ester 
ary F llerton C andrakali a ara

LOOKING AHEAD

redictions are t at lo  oil and gas prices ill pre ail 
t ro g   and ill impact negati ely on t e 
economy o  rinidad and obago  o e er gi en t at 
t is is an election year it is e pected t at t ere ill 
be a eig tened le el o  go ernment spending  e 
net e ect o  t e abo e scenarios ill contrib te to 
a le el o  ncertainty in t e nancial sector  CECU’s 
capability is s c  t at e ill contin e to aggressi ely 
p rs e increased b siness e en in t e ace o  an 

npredictable market  

i en t at e a e been contin o sly orking to ards 
meeting re irements o  t e proposed Credit Union ill 
its introd ction ill pose no ma or c allenge or s
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e importance o  CECU’s compliance nder t e 
Financial ntelligence Act contin es to be o  paramo nt 
importance as it relates to good go ernance  An on site 
a dit by members o  t e Financial ntelligence Unit and 
t e Central ank o  rinidad and obago  re ested 
t at CECU address t e iss e o  dormant acco nts  e 
res lt o  t is as t at  dormant acco nts it  a 
al e o  6  ere closed o

CECU’s oc s on broadening o r o erings  impro ing 
o r competiti eness ile ens ring transparency and 
good go ernance ill ser e to keep yo r credit nion 
on a stable gro t  pat

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

We place on record o r gratit de to all o r sponsor 
companies as ell as to eal  assy oldings 
imited or its assistance and g idance  We also is  

to t ank o r ankers  ns rance rokers  Attorneys  
Stockbrokers  A ditors  CU A Caribbean ns rance and 
t e Commissioner o  
Co operati e e elopment  We e press o r 
deepest t anks to CECU sta  or yeoman 
ser ice d ring t e year and look or ard to 
t eir contin ing contrib tion as e stri e 

to make CECU a model to em late  On my o n be al  
 t ank my oard and Committees or t eir s pport to 
t e Credit Union and in my role as C air   

 t ank yo  t e members  or making o r Credit Union 
t e s ccess it is  t as been an ono r and pri ilege to 
ser e yo

ank yo  and od bless yo  all

o ind a ara
President
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Govind Maharaj,
President
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a
b

c d e

g i

k l m

a  E gene Step enson At ell
 General Manager
b  erri Ann osep rat aite
 Secretary
c  ester Syl ester  Director
d  o ind a ara  President
e  enny alsa  Vice President

 S i a ngal  Director

g  ary F llerton  Director
 lenroy Forrester  Director

i  C andrakali a ara  Director
 Carol Roberts  Director

k  ian ope  Director
l  ester amlet  Director
m  earl tler ope  Director

Board of Directors
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APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

e t Resol ed t at t e rm  ontgomery  
Company be appointed or t e nancial year ending 

ecember st  

DIVIDENDS:

e t Resol ed t at in accordance it  ye a s  
Section  a di idend o   be paid on lly paid p 
s ares at t e end o  t e nancial year ended ecember 

st   and t at s c  di idends be credited to 
members’ s ares

INTEREST REBATE

e t Resol ed t at t e Ann al eneral eeting 
appro e t e recommendation o  t e oard o  irectors 
re t e payment o  an interest rebate o   on all 
interest paid on loans or t e nancial year ended 

ecember   s c  interest rebate to be credited 
to members’ loan acco nt

Resolutions
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Staff
Left to right:

Nyland Young, Marketing Analyst; Kimberlee Maraj, Customer Service Rep;
Shernell Wright, Courier; Lorraine Ragbir, Marketing Manager;

Theresa Mendez, Con ential Secretary; Andrew Young, IT Assistant; Sandra Johnson, Senior Systems A ministrator
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D. MONTGOMERY & CO
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of:
CANNING’S EMPLOYEES’ CREDIT UNION CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We a e a dited t e accompanying nancial statements 
o  Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union Co operati e 
Society imited ic  comprise t e statement o  nancial 
position as o  st ecember  and t e statements 
o  pro t or loss and compre ensi e income  c anges in 
members’ nds and cas  o s or t e year t en ended 
and a s mmary o  signi cant acco nting policies and 
ot er e planatory notes

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

anagement is responsible or t e preparation and 
t e air presentation o  t ese nancial statements in 
accordance it  nternational Financial Reporting 
Standards  is responsibility incl des  designing  
implementing and maintaining internal controls rele ant 
to t e preparation and air presentation o  nancial 
statements t at are ree rom material misstatement  

et er d e to ra d or error  selecting and applying 
appropriate acco nting policies  and making acco nting 
estimates t at are reasonable in t e circ mstances

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

O r responsibility is to e press an opinion on t ese 
nancial statements based on o r a dit  We cond cted 

o r a dit in accordance it  nternational Standards on 
A diting  ose standards re ire t at e comply it  
et ical re irements and plan and per orm t e a dit 
to obtain reasonable ass rance et er t e nancial 
statements are ree rom material misstatement

An a dit in ol es per orming proced res to obtain a dit 
e idence abo t t e amo nts and disclos res in t e 

nancial statements  e proced res selected depend on 
t e a ditors’ dgment  incl ding t e assessment o  t e 
risks o  material misstatement o  t e nancial statements  

et er d e to ra d or error  n making t ose risk 
assessments  t e a ditors consider internal control 
rele ant to t e entity’s preparation and air presentation 
o  t e nancial statements in order to design a dit 
proced res t at are appropriate in t e circ mstances  
b t not or t e p rpose o  e pressing an opinion on t e 
e ecti eness o  t e entity’s internal control  An a dit also 
incl des e al ating t e appropriateness o  acco nting 
policies sed and t e reasonableness o  acco nting 
estimates made by management  as ell as e al ating t e 
o erall presentation o  t e nancial statements

We belie e t at t e a dit e idence e a e obtained 
is s cient and appropriate to pro ide a basis or o r 
a dit opinion

OPINION

n o r opinion  t e accompanying nancial statements 
present airly  in all material respects  t e nancial 
position o  Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union Co
operati e Society imited as o  st ecember  
and its nancial per ormance and cas  o s or t e 
year ended in accordance it  nternational Financial 
Reporting Standards

t  Febr ary 
ort o  Spain
R A  A  O A O
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Statement of Financial Position
31ST DECEMBER 2014

Current Assets Notes              2014 2013
Cas  and S ort erm eposits       
n estments      6  
Acco nts Recei able and Accr ed nterest        6 6 

Total Current Assets       

Non- Current Assets
n estments  eld to at rity      6  
oans to embers et o  Allo ance or oan osses    6  6
roperty and E ipment 6       6  6 6

Total Assets  6  

Liabilities and Members’ Funds
Current Liabilities

Acco nts ayable and Accr ed E penses        6  
e to ational ns rance oard                  6 

embers’ eposits         
embers’ S ares    6  

Total Current Liabilities     6

Members’ Funds
Fair al e Reser es        6  6
Reser e F nd      6  6
Ed cation F nd            6 6
Common ood F nd              6
Retained ncome       

Total Members’ Fund      6 6

Total Liabilities and Members’ Fund  6    
    

e accompanying signi cant acco nting policies on pages  to  and notes on pages 6  to 6  orm an integral 
part o  t ese nancial statements   On t  Febr ary  t e oard o  irectors A t orised t ese nancial state
ments or iss e

resident                                    reas rer
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Profit or Loss and other
Comprehensive Income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2014

Income Notes            2014 2013

oan nterest     666 66
n estment ncome       
S ndry Re en e         6  6

     6

Expenditure

Ann al eneral eeting          
Amortisation              
A dit Fee         6  6

ank C arges and nterest           6  
Comp ter Ser ices            
CU A ns rance remi m      6  

epreciation             6  
irectors’ ra el and S bsistence            

Electricity            
Employees’ Retirement ncome Sec rity lan         6  6
Fidelity ond             6  6

onoraria                     
ns rance            6
nterest on embers’ Fi ed eposits         6 6
egal and ro essional Fees            6
oss on isposal o  S ares            
arketing          
eetings and Seminars           6  

O ce E penses         6 
Rates and a es             6  6
Repairs and aintenance           6 
Salaries  Wages and ational ns rance      6  6
Sec rity           6  
Stationery  rinting and ostage            66
Special A            6  
elep one            6 6  6
ra elling and Entertainment             6  

Total Expenses      6  6

et S rpl s or t e ear     

Add Other Comprehensive Income 
tem t at ill not be Reclassi ed s bse ently to ro t or oss
ecrease in ad ebt Reser e       

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   
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Statement of Cash Flows 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES           2014 2013

S rpl s or t e ear    
Ad stment or on Cas  tems

Accr ed nterest ncome    6 6  6 66
epreciation        6  

Amortisation             
oss on isposal o  S ares           

Cash Flows before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities     6 6 6 6

ncrease in oans to embers et   6  6
ncrease in Ot er ayables           
ecrease in embers’ eposits       6  6
ecrease in Recei ables      6

Cash Generated from Operations     6

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
rc ase o  n estments   
rc ase o  lant  ac inery and E ipment          

roceeds rom t e isposal o  S ares           

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities   

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ncrease in S ares   6  6 6
i idends aid   6

Ed cation F nd        
Common ood F nd          6
Entrance Fees                  

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities   6  6

et  ecrease ncrease in Cas  and Cas  E i alents     
Cas  and Cas  E i alent  at beginning o  t e ear    6

Cash and Cash Equivalent – at end of the Year  

REPRESENTED BY

Cas  and S ort erm eposits  
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Statement of Changes in
Members’ Fund
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2014

             Fair                                                    Common
           al e        Reser e      Ed cation     ood       Retained
       Reser e             F nd        F nd      F nd         ncome             Total

alance as at st ecember    6    6    6 6    6    6

Appropriation                          6    6      
Entrance Fee                                                                                   
Sta  Training and e elopment
    F nction E penses                                                                         

onations and Sc olars ips                                                                 
Appreciation in arket 
    al e o  Sec rities      6                                                                     6
S rpl s or t e ear                                                                     
Ot er Compre ensi e ncome                                                                       

i idends                                                                    

Balance as at 31st December 2014 6  6     6

              Fair                                                   Common
ear Ended st          al e        Reser e      Ed cation     ood      Retained

   ecember       Reser e             F nd        F nd      F nd         ncome Total

alance as at st ecember    6    6    6   6     6 6

Appropriation                                 6  
Entrance Fee                                                                                 
Sta  Training and e elopment
    F nction E penses                                                                         

onations and Sc olars ips                                              6                      6
Appreciation in arket 
    al e o  Sec rities                                                                       
S rpl s or t e ear                                                                     

i idends                                                                   6  6

Balance as at 31st December 2013 6  6  6 6  6  6
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Receipts and Payments
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2014

Receipts  Payments

S ares          6 S ares 
oans    ersonal          oans    ersonal 

   ortgages              6                ortgages 
   Special               Special 6

embers’ eposits           6  embers’ eposits 
 oans C                  UTC ro t  and ncome F nd 

CU A ns rance Claims ayable              6  Ann al eneral eeting 
nterest on oans         66  CU A Acco nts ayable 6
n estment ncome              6  Salaries and Wages 
F rnit re and Fi t re                6  Acco nts and ayroll Recei able 
Entrance Fee                           oans C  
Commission               o rse Sec rities 
Acco nts and ayroll Recei ables               A dit Fee 

ad ebt Reser e F nd                 ank C arges 6
TECU Clearing Acco nt            Comp ter ard are 
R le ook                        Ed cation F nd E penses 
S ndry Re en e                6 Acco nts ayable and Accr al 
Acco nts ayable and Accr als               Electricity 
nterest Recei able n estment            ro essional and egal Fees 
e  embers Clearing Acco nt              6 Sec rity E penses 

Stale ated C e es                    TECU Clearing Acco nt 6
Appreciation epreciation o  Assets                6  eetings and Seminars 6

iscellaneo s Receipts                      Ad ertisement 6
ational ns rance                 CU A ns rance remi ms 

CECU Care ealt  ns rance              6 6  CU A ns rance Claims 
OTT  Fi ed Rate ond                  O ce E pense 6 66

 Repairs and aintenance  roperty 
 Repairs and aintenance 6
 rinting and Stationery 
 Stale ated C e es 
 Common ood F nd 6
 ns rance E pense 
 embers eposits   
 ad ebt Reser e 
 ilding ease old mpro ements 6
 iscellaneo s Receipts 6
 Fidelity ond 6
 CU A ayable 
 ational ns rance 6
 Employees E penses 
 Tra elling 
 Tra elling and S bsistence  Sta  6
 Employees Fringe ene t 
 Water Rates 6
 Telep one 6 6
 arketing E penses 
 Employers Contrib tion to ension 6
 Comp ter Ser ices 
 onations 
 Col mb s Comm nications 
 F rnit re and Fi t res 6
 CECU Care ealt  ns rance 6
 Undi ided Earnings 
 l  City ond 
 Special eneral eeting 6
 Employers S S rc arge 
 repayments 6 6
 Firstline Sec rities 
 FC  US  Repo 
 R C Royal ank F F nd 
 S spense Acco nt 
 Appreciation epreciation o  Assets 6 6 6
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(a) Basis of Financial Statements Preparation

 T ese nancial statements are prepared in accordance it  nternational Financial Reporting Standards FRS  
and are stated in Trinidad and Tobago dollars   T ese nancial statements are stated on t e istorical cost basis  
as modi ed by t e re al ation o  in estment sec rities in accordance it  t e Co operati e Societies Act 

(b) Use of Estimates

 T e preparation o  nancial statements in con ormity it  FRSs re ires t e se o  certain critical acco nting 
estimates and re ires management to e ercise its dgment in t e process o  applying t e Society’s acco nting 
policies   t also re ires t e se o  ass mptions t at a ect t e reported amo nts o  assets and liabilities and 
disclos re o  contingent assets and liabilities at t e date o  t e nancial statements and t e reported amo nts 
o  income and e pendit re d ring t e reporting period   Alt o g  t ese estimates are based on management’s 
best kno ledge o  c rrent e ents and actions  act al res lts may ltimately di er rom t ose estimates

(c) Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs and IFRICs

 ring t e c rrent year  t e Society adopted all t e ne  and re ised nternational Financial Reporting Standards 
FRS  and nternational Financial Reporting nterpretations FR Cs  ic  are rele ant to its operations and are 

e ecti e or acco nting periods commencing on or be ore st an ary   T e adoption o  t ese Standards 
did not a e a material e ect on t e nancial statements   At t e date o  a t ori ation o  t ese nancial 
statements  some Standards ere in iss e b t not yet e ecti e   T e oard o  irectors e pects t at t e 
adoption o  t ese Standards in t re periods ill not a e a material e ect on t e nancial statements o  t e 
Society

Amendments to AS  resentations o  tems o  Ot er Compre ensi e ncome Ann al eriods beginning 
on or a ter an ary  

 T e Credit Union as applied t e Amendments to AS  resentation o  tems o  Ot er Compre ensi e ncome 
or t e rst time in t e c rrent year   Under t e Amendments to AS  t e Statement o  Compre ensi e 
ncome  is renamed as t e Statement o  ro t or oss and Ot er Compre ensi e ncome   T e Amendments 
to AS  retain t e option to present ro t or oss and Ot er Compre ensi e ncome in eit er a single statement 
or in t o separate b t consec ti e statements

 o e er  t e Amendments to AS  re ire items o  Ot er Compre ensi e ncome to be gro ped into t o 
categories in t e Ot er Compre ensi e ncome section

 a  tems t at ill not be reclassi ed s bse ently to pro t or loss and
 b  tems t at may be reclassi ed s bse ently to pro t or loss en speci c conditions are met

 Ot er t an t e abo e mentioned presentation c anges  t e  application o  t e Amendments to AS  does not 
res lt in any impact on ro t or oss  Ot er Compre ensi e ncome and Total Compre ensi e ncome

Significant Accounting Policies 
31ST DECEMBER 2014
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(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

 roperty  plant and e ipment are stated at istorical cost less acc m lated depreciation and incl de 
impro ements t at signi cantly add to prod cti e capacity or e tend t e se l li e o  t e asset    Cost o  
maintenance and repairs are c arged to e penses

 Upon retirement or disposal o  assets  t e cost and related depreciation are remo ed rom t e acco nts and t e 
gain or loss  i  any  is re ected in t e earnings or t e year

 epreciation is pro ided on t e diminis ing balance met od  so as to rite t e assets o  o er t eir estimated 
se l li es

 T e rates sed are

  O ce e ipment    on t e net book amo nt
  F rnit re and t res    on t e net book amo nt
  Comp ter ard are    on t e net book amo nt
  ease old premises   o er t e term o  t e lease

 T e assets’ resid al al es and se l li es are re ie ed at eac  balance s eet date and ad sted as appropriate   
An asset’s carrying amo nt is ritten do n immediately to its reco erable amo nt i  t e asset’s carrying amo nt 
is greater t an its estimated reco erable amo nt

(e) Investments

 T ese sec rities are intended to be eld or an inde nite period o  time b t may be sold in response to t e need 
or li idity or c anges to interest rates  e c ange rates or e ity prices

 A ailable or sale in estments are s bse ently carried at air al e it  nreali ed gains or losses arising rom 
c anges in t e air al e  recogni ed directly to e ity in t e period in ic  t ey arise ntil t e nancial asset is  
disposed o  at ic  time t e c m lati e gain or loss pre io sly recogni ed  in e ity is incl ded in t e income 
statement

 All p rc ases and sales o  in estments are recogni ed on t e trade date  ic  is t e date t at t e Credit 
Union commits to p rc ase or sell t e asset   Cost o  p rc ase incl des transaction costs   For acti ely traded 
in estments  air al e is determined by re erence to t e Stock E c ange oted market prices at t e balance 
s eet date  ad sted or transaction costs necessary to reali e t e in estment   For in estments ere t ere is no 

oted market price  t e carrying al e is deemed to appro imate air al e

(f) Financial Instruments

 Financial instr ments are contracts t at gi e rise to a nancial asset o  one entity and a nancial liability or e ity 
instr ment o  anot er entity

 Financial assets and nancial liabilities are recogni ed on t e Society’s balance s eet en t e Society becomes a 
party to t e contract al pro isions o  t e instr ment

 (a) Members Shares
  

embers’ s ares are classi ed as liabilities in accordance it  nternational Financial Reporting 
nterpretation Committee FR C  nterpretation 
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 Financial Assets

 All reg lar p rc ases and sales o  nancial assets are recogni ed or derecogni ed on t e trade date i e  t e date 
on ic  t e Society commits itsel  to p rc ase or sell an asset   A reg lar p rc ase and sale o  nancial assets 
is a p rc ase or sale o  an asset nder a contract ose terms re ire deli ery o  t e asset it in t e time rame 
establis ed generally by reg lation or con ention in t e marketplace concerned

 W en nancial assets are recogni ed initially  t ey are meas red at air al e o  t e consideration gi en pl s 
transaction costs directly attrib table to t e ac isition o  t e assets

 Financial assets are derecogni ed en t e contract al rig ts to recei e t e cas  o s e pire or ere t e risks 
and re ards o  o ners ip o  t e assets a e been trans erred

(g) Revenue Recognition

 Loan Interest
 nterest c arged on all loans to members is calc lated on t e o tstanding balance at  per mont

 nterest on non per orming loans is not accr ed or taken into income on an ongoing basis beca se t ere is do bt 
as to t e reco erability o  t e loans   ncome rom non per orming loans is taken into income on a cas  basis

 For non per orming loans  pro isions are made or t e nsec red portion o  t e loan   T e amo nt o  t e 
pro ision is dependent pon t e e tent o  t e delin ency

 Investment Income
 ncome rom in estments is acco nted or on t e accr als basis e cept or di idends  ic  are acco nted or on 

a cas  basis  consistent it  nternational Acco nting Standards AS

(h) Dividends Payable to Members

 i idends are comp ted on t e basis o  t e a erage al e o  s ares eld t ro g o t t e year  t e a erage being 
determined on t e basis o  t e al e o  s ares eld at t e end o  eac  day   i idends t at are proposed and 
declared a ter t e balance s eet date are not s o n as a liability in accordance it  AS  b t are disclosed as 
a note to t e nancial statements

(i) Foreign Currency

 onetary assets and liabilities denominated in oreign c rrencies are e pressed in Trinidad and Tobago dollars 
at rates o  e c ange r ling at t e balance s eet date   All re en e and e pendit re transactions denominated in 
oreign c rrencies are translated at t e a erage rate and t e res lting pro ts and losses on e c ange rom t ese 

trading acti ities are recorded in t e statement o  income

 Comparative Figures
 Certain c anges in t e presentation a e been made d ring t e year and comparati e g res a e been 

restated accordingly   T ese c anges a e no impact on t e s rpl s reported or t e pre io s year

(j) Financial Risk Management

 Financial Risk Factors
 T e Society’s acti ities are primarily related to t e se o  nancial instr ments   T e Society accepts nds 
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rom members and earns interest by in esting in e ity in estments  go ernment sec rities and on lending to 
members at ig er interest rates

 T e Society is e posed to interest rate risk  credit risk  li idity risk  c rrency risk  operational risk  compliance risk 
and rep tation risk arising rom t e nancial instr ments t at it olds   T e risk management policies employed 
by t e Society to manage t ese risks are disc ssed belo

 (a) Interest Rate Risk:
nterest rate risk is t e risk t at t e air al e or t re cas  o s o  a nancial instr ment ill ct ate 
beca se o  c anges in market interest rates

T e Society is e posed to interest rate risk t ro g  t e e ect o  ct ations in t e pre ailing le els o  
interest rates on interest bearing nancial assets and liabilities incl ding in estments in bonds  loans  
c stomer deposits and ot er nding instr ments

T e e pos re is managed t ro g  t e matc ing o  nding prod cts it  nancial ser ices and monitoring 
market conditions and yields

 (i)  Bonds

  T e Society in ests mainly in medi m term bonds consisting o  ed rate instr ments

  T e market al es o  t e ed rate bonds are not ery sensiti e to c anges in interest rates   T e 
market al es o  t e oating rate bonds are sensiti e to c anges in interest rates   T e longer t e 
mat rity o  t e bonds  t e greater is t e sensiti ity to c anges in interest rates   eca se t ese 
assets are being eld to mat rity and are not traded  any c anges in market al es ill not impact 
t e statement o  income

 (b) Credit Risk:

 Credit risk arises en a ail re by co nter parties to disc arge t eir obligations co ld red ce t e 
amo nt o  t re cas  in o s rom nancial assets on and at t e balance s eet date   T e Society 
relies ea ily on a ritten oan olicy an al  ic  sets o t in detail t e c rrent policies go erning 
t e lending nction and pro ides a compre ensi e rame ork or pr dent risk management o  t e 
credit nction   Ad erence to t ese g idelines is e pected to comm nicate t e Society’s lending 
p ilosop y  pro ide policy g idelines to t e team members in ol ed in lending  establis  minim m 
standards or credit analysis  doc mentation  decision making and post disb rsement administration  
as ell as create t e o ndation or a so nd credit port olio

                                  
 T e Society’s loan port olio is managed and consistently monitored by t e Credit Committee and is 
ade ately sec red by collateral and ere necessary  pro isions a e been establis ed or potential 
credit losses on delin ent acco nts

 Cas  balances are eld it  ig  credit ality nancial instit tions and t e Society as policies to limit 
t e amo nt o  e pos re to any single nancial instit tion

 T e Society also acti ely monitors global economic de elopments and go ernment policies t at may 
a ect t e gro t  rate o  t e local economy
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 (c) Liquidity Risk:

 i idity risk is t e risk t at arises en t e mat rity dates o  assets and liabilities do not matc   An 
nmatc ed position potentially en ances pro tability  b t can also increase t e risk o  losses   T e 

Society as proced res it  t e ob ect o  minimi ing s c  losses s c  as maintaining s cient cas  
and ot er ig ly li id c rrent assets and by a ing a ailable an ade ate amo nt o  committed 
credit acilities

 T e Society is able to make daily calls on its a ailable cas  reso rces to settle nancial and ot er liabilities

 Risk Management

 T e matc ing and controlled mismatc ing o  t e mat rities and interest rates o  assets and liabilities 
are ndamental to t e management o  t e Society   T e Society employs ario s asset liability 
tec ni es to manage li idity gaps   i idity gaps are mitigated by t e marketable nat re o  a 
s bstantial segment o  t e Society’s assets as ell as generating s cient cas  rom ne  and rene ed 
members’ deposits and s ares

 To manage and red ce li idity risk t e Society’s management acti ely seeks to matc  cas  in o s 
it  liability re irements

 (d) Currency Risk:

 C rrency risk is t e risk t at t e al e o  nancial instr ments ill ct ate d e to c anges in oreign 
e c ange rates   C rrency risk arises en t re commercial transactions and recogni ed assets and 
liabilities are denominated in a c rrency t at is not t e Society’s meas rement c rrency   T e Society 
is e posed to oreign e c ange risk arising rom ario s c rrency e pos res primarily it  respect to 
t e United States ollar   T e Society’s management monitors t e e c ange rate ct ations on a 
contin o s basis and acts accordingly

 (e) Operational Risk:

 Operational risk is t e risk deri ed rom de ciencies relating to t e Society’s in ormation tec nology 
and control systems  as ell as t e risk o  man error and nat ral disasters   T e Society’s systems 
are e al ated  maintained and pgraded contin o sly   S per isory controls are installed to minimi e 

man error

 (f) Compliance Risk:

Compliance risk is t e risk o  nancial loss  incl ding nes and ot er penalties  ic  arise rom non
compliance it  la s and reg lations o  t e state   T e risk is limited to a signi cant e tent d e to 
t e s per ision applied by t e nspector o  Financial nstit tions at t e Central ank o  Trinidad and 
Tobago  as ell as by t e monitoring controls applied by t e Society

 (g) Reputation Risk:

 T e risk o  loss o  rep tation arising rom t e negati e p blicity relating to t e Society’s operations 
et er tr e or alse  may res lt in a red ction o  its clientele  red ction in re en e and legal cases 

against t e Society   T e Society engages in p blic social endea o rs to engender tr st and minimi e 
t is risk
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(k) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments:

 T e preparation o  nancial statements in accordance it  nternational Financial Reporting Standards re ires 
management to make its dgments  estimates and ass mptions in t e process o  applying t e Society’s 
acco nting policies   

 Estimates and dgments are contin ally e al ated and are based on istorical e perience and ot er actors  
incl ding e pectations o  t re e ents t at are belie ed to be reasonable nder t e circ mstances   T e 
Society makes estimates and ass mptions concerning t e t re   o e er  act al res lts co ld di er rom t ose 
estimates as t e res lting acco nting estimates ill  by de nition  seldom e al t e related act al res lts   T e 
estimates and ass mptions t at a e a signi cant risk o  ca sing a material ad stment to t e carrying amo nts o  
assets and liabilities it in t e ne t nancial year are disc ssed belo

 C anges in acco nting estimates are recogni ed in t e statement o  income in t e period in ic  t e estimate 
is c anged  i  t e c ange a ects t at period only  or in t e period o  t e c ange and t re periods i  t e c ange 
a ects bot  c rrent and t re periods

 T e critical dgments  apart rom t ose in ol ing estimations  ic  a e t e most signi cant e ect on t e 
amo nts recogni ed in t e nancial statements  are as ollo s

 i  W et er in estments are classi ed as eld to mat rity in estments  a ailable or sale or loan and recei ables

 ii  epreciation met od or plant and e ipment sed

T e key ass mptions concerning t e t re and ot er key so rces o  estimation ncertainty at t e balance 
s eet date re iring management’s most di c lt  s b ecti e or comple  dgments  t at a e a signi cant 
risk o  ca sing a material ad stment to t e carrying amo nts o  assets and liabilities it in t e ne t nancial  
year are as ollo s

(i) Impairment of Assets

anagement assesses at eac  balance s eet date et er assets are impaired   An asset is impaired 
en t e carrying al e is greater t an its reco erable amo nt and t ere is ob ecti e e idence o  

impairment   Reco erable amo nt is t e present al e o  t e t re cas  o s   ro isions are made or 
t e e cess o  t e carrying al e o er its reco erable amo nt

(ii) Plant and Equipment

anagement e ercises dgment in determining et er t re economic bene ts can be 
deri ed rom e pendit res to be capitali ed and in estimating t e se l li es and resid al al es 
o  t ese assets
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1. INCORPORATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY  31ST DECEMBER 2014

 Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union Co operati e Society imited is a credit nion incorporated nder t e Co
operati e Societies Act   ts principal acti ity is t e granting o  loans to members   ts registered o ce is 
sit ated at  ictoria A en e  ort o  Spain

2. CASH AND SHORT TERM DEPOSITS             2014 2013

 Cash and Cash Equivalents

 R C Royal ank imited  C rrent Acco nt     6  
 Unit Tr st Corporation  US ollar oney arket F nd      6 6
 Unit Tr st Corporation  Second Sc eme     6 6  
 etty  Cas             6 
 R C erc ant ank and Finance Company imited  Fi ed eposits         
 R C Royal ank imited US  Sa ings        6  
 eneral Finance  Term eposit      

   

3. INVESTMENTS  
   
 Current        2014               2014 2013
          Cost  Market Value       Market Value

 oted S ares                       
 Sa in est Str ct red n estment F nd                        6  6
 Sa in est ndia Asia F nd      6 6          6  6
 Firstline Sec rities                         
   
 Mutual Funds:

  raetorian roperty t al F nd      6           6
  Scotia ank lobal ro t  F nd      6          6  6
  Unit Tr st C aconia ncome and ro t  F nd                
  T e Abercrombie F nd                       6
  FC  E  T c c e          
  A SA erc ant ank td TT ncome F nd          
   Roytrin          
  UTC ncome and ro t  F nd          
  R C ndi id al anaged F nd       6  

 Unquoted Shares:
  Central Finance Facility                    
  ardian Asset anagement         6  6 6
  A  on iscretionary F nd         6  6
  S  Asset anagement          66
 
   6  

Notes to the Financial Statements
31ST DECEMBER 2014
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3. INVESTMENTS CONT’D   

 Non-Current:

 o ernment o  Trinidad and Tobago  Fi ed ond                     
 o ernment ond  e       
 Central ank  O EC       
 EC FR  o ernment ond      
 Ed cation Facilities ond      
 C   First Citi ens n estment Ser ices      
 o rse Sec rities imited     
 o rse Sec rities imited       
 assy  Fi ed Rate ond      
 FC   l  City ond      
 FC   l  City ond  remi m           
 FC   US Repo      
 etrobras nternational        6 

  6  

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ACCRUED INTEREST         2014 2013

 repayments       6 6 
 nterest Recei able  6  
 Acco nts Recei able      
 ayroll in Transit     6  
 TECU Clearing Acco nt         

  6 6 

5. (i)  LOANS TO MEMBERS
            Small
        ersonal     ortgage             Car siness                
             Loans           Loans          Loans     Loans               Total Total

 on elin ent Loans   6                       6  6
 elin ent Loans     6 66                      6 6 6

  6     

5. (i) LOANS TO MEMBERS
                   2014 2013

 ross Loans    
 Allo ance or Loan Losses       6
       

 6  6
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 T e delin ent loans balance o  6 6 6  represents acco nts on ic  payments a e not 
been recei ed or ere made sporadically d ring t e year  T e total pro ision or delin ent loans at t e end 
o  t e year  as  re ecting a decrease rom t e pre io s year   T is amo nt as o nd to be 
pr dent in keeping it  t e re irements as o tlined in t e dra t Credit Union ill proposed by t e Central ank 
and t e strategies artic lated by CECU to e ecti ely manage delin ency

 S ares eld by members ose loans are delin ent total    T e Credit Union also 
olds sec rity in respect o  t e mortgage loans

 (ii) ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES         2014 2013

  alance ro g t For ard   6  6
  Loans Written O         6 6
  Amo nts Reco ered on alances re io sly Written o          
  Red ction in Reser e    

  Balance Carried Forward  6

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
      
       O ce   F rnit re   Lease old Comp ter
 ear Ended st ecember  F rnit re  Fi t res     remises  ard are Total

 Opening et ook Amo nt   6         6      6  6 6
 Additions                              6         
 epreciation C arge          6               6

 Closing et ook Amo nt 6     6   66  6

 Year Ended st ecember 

 Opening et ook Amo nt     66     6    6       6 6
 Additions                                     6 
 epreciation C arge                        

 Closing et ook Amo nt 6     6    6  6 6

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES    2014 2013

 S are Reser e F nd    
 Special S are Reser e  ormant Acco nts 6  
 CU A ns rance Claim ayable  
 Acco nts ayable  Accr al    6
 Stale ated C e es 6  
 S spense Acco nts     6  66
 S ndry Creditors             6

  6  
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8. DUE TO NATIONAL INSURANCE BOARD    2014 2013

 alance d e st an ary      6
 Amo nts Recei ed on ortgages isb rsed  6 6 6
   6  66 6
 F nds aid o er to ational ns rance oard  6 6

 alance d e at st ecember      6 

9. MEMBERS’ DEPOSITS       2014 2013

 eriod to at rity

 Wit in t ree mont s     
 et een t ree mont s and one year  

   

 
 nterest rate aries bet een  to  per ann m   All deposits are repayable on demand b t early redemption 

penalties apply

10. FAIR VALUE RESERVES         2014 2013

 alance as at st an ary   6  6
 Appreciation in arket al e o  Sec rities      6  

 alance as at st ecember 6  6

11. RESERVE FUND

 T e reser e nd is set p in accordance it  R le o   o  Cannings Employees’ Credit Union Co operati e 
Society Limited ic  re ires t at t e Society set aside ann ally all entrance and ot er ees and nes and a s m 
not less t an  o  t e amo nt o  its net s rpl s to be sed as a reser e against bad loans and ot er losses   

o e er  t e appro al o  t e eneral eeting and t e Commissioner or Co operati e e elopment is re ired 
be ore any rite o  is made

 y letter dated st October  t e Commissioner or Co operati e e elopment ad ised t e Credit Union 
t at t e Reser e F nd is not speci cally set p or bad debts rite o  ic  is to be a ected t ro g  t e ncome 
and E pendit re Acco nt   Utilisation o  any balance in t is acco nt m st be s b ect to t e appro al o  t e 
Commissioner in accordance it  Section  o  t e Co operati e Societies Act 

12. EDUCATION

 T e Ed cation F nd is set p in accordance it  R le 6 ic  pro ides t at t e balance o  net s rpl s may 
be sed at t e discretion o  t e general meeting   T e amo nt proposed by t e oard is e al to  o  t e 
net s rpl s
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13. COMMON GOOD FUND

 T e Common ood F nd is set p in accordance it  R le  ic  pro ides t at t e balance o  t e net s rpl s 
may be sed at t e discretion o  t e general meeting   T e amo nt proposed by t e oard is e al to  o  
t e net s rpl s

14. DIVIDEND PER SHARE

 i idends payable are not acco nted or ntil t ey a e been rati ed at t e Ann al eneral eeting   At a 
meeting o  t e oard o  irectors on t  Febr ary  a di idend in respect o   o    cents per s are 
pl s a  rebate on interest paid on loans amo nting to a total o  6   act al  is to 
be proposed   T ese nancial statements do not re ect t is di idend payable  ic  ill be acco nted or in total 
members nd as an appropriation o  retained income in t e year ending st ecember 

15. RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY PLAN

 T e employees are members o  t e eal  assy Company Limited Retirement ncome Sec rity lan  ic  is a 
de ned contrib tory sc eme   T e Credit Union’s contrib tions are c arged to e penses or t e year

16. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

 i  T e Retrenc ment and Se erance ene t Act  prescribes proced res to be ollo ed in t e e ent o  
red ndancy and to pro ide or se erance pay to retrenc ed orkers   T e Credit Union as adopted t e 
approac  o  pay as yo  go in dealing it  t ese obligations   Under t is approac  no pro ision is made 
nless employees are terminated

 ii  As at st ecember  t ere as   6  in loans t at ere appro ed b t not 
yet lly disb rsed
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Projected Income & Expenditure
     U ET    U ET    
  FORECAST  FORECAST    ACTUAL    ACTUAL ACTUAL
   ec    ec    ec   ec  ec

INCOME          
Loan nterest   66    66         666 66   6 6  
n estment ncome     6       6                 
S ndry Re en e                          6          6    6  

   16,451,158   15,906,361   15,432,300   14,729,260   14,806,016

EXPENSES     
     

ersonnel costs      
Salaries and Wages           6             6   6  
Sta  ncenti es                                                                                                 
Employers contrib tion to ension ealt  lan                            6            6     
Employer’s S Contrib tion                 6                      6     
Employee’s E penses                                                 6   6  
Employee’s Fringe ene ts                                      

       2,208,204     1,964,943     2,059,509     1,681,166   1,756,179     
Administration Costs:     
A  E penses                                      6  
Ammorti ation                                                                          
A dit Fees                          6            6     

ad ebt ro ision                                                                                
ank c arges          6            6 6            6                
oard and Committee Tra el  S bsistence                                               

Comp ter Ser ices                                             
CU A Caribbean ns rance remi ms                 6          6  

epreciation        6                   6             6  
Fidelity ond            6              6              6              6    6  

onororia                                                                         
ns rance          6            6                       6    6 6  
nterest on embers eposits          6                  6             
Loss on disposal o  S ares                                                                                     

arketing and Ad ertising                                       
eetings and Seminars                                6               6 

O ce E penses        6          6          6            6  
ro essional Fees                                     6    6 

Rates and Utilities                                       
Repairs and aintenance                     6            6               
Sec rity                                6               6  
Stationery and riniting                                           66     
Tra elling and s bsistence                                       6                 6  
S                                 6                              
       6             66      6     

Total Expenses    5,449,896     5,323,117     4,861,475     4,685,843   4,997,607 
 
Excess of Income over Expenditure  11,001,262   10,583,244   10,570,825   10,043,417   9,808,409 
Appropriations as ollo s
Reser e F nd      6                      
Ed cation F nd                 6          6              
Common ood F nd                       6            6                
Retained Earnings     6                   6    
   11,001,262   10,583,244   10,570,825   10,043,418   9,808,319 
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Staff
Left to right: 
Deborah Byng, Senior oans cer
Sharon Howard, oans cer;
Deion Raphael, unior oans cer;
Linda Mentor, Recoveries cer;
Christophe Syriac, General Assistant
Sylvia Ramdeo-Ramsubhag, Management A ministrator
Joanna Singh, Cashier
Kelly Ann Traboulay, Finance Manager
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T e Credit Committee or t e year ended ecember  
 comprised

nior oray C airman
lenn iontko ski Secretary

Rosemary Ayres ember
iola Calender ember
atalie O en ember

Alternates    
at y Ann oe and Tis a ilette

T e total loans disb rsed in  ere 6  al ed 
at 6 6  W ile t e loan al e increased by 

6  t e n mber o  re ests or loans decreased 
by  en compared to  T e Committee as 
nable to appro e  6  o  loan applications d e to 

non compliance it  t e appro ed loan policy

As at an ary  Trinidad and Tobago’s in ation rate 
as  and spiked signi cantly to  in ecember 

 Constr ction  among ot er areas  ad national 
impact and ga e rise to price increases in ra  materials  
T is re ected in cons mer demand and e ident in t e 
loans appro ed d ring t e year   

ring t e year in re ie  members borro ed primarily 
or o sing p rc ase  mortgage  repairs  and cars  T e 

ac isition cost and risk o  t ese assets re ired t e credit 
nion ens red t e necessary legal re irements ere 

attained to sec re bot  t e member and credit nion

n t e second al  o  t e year  t o ne  prod cts Sc ool 
ooks Special’ and t e C ristmas promotion ere 

attracti e to members  res lting in loans al ed at 
 and  respecti ely  T e  Loan 

al e o  6  increased in  by   
en compared it  t e  loan al e   

E en t o g  oil prices began alling rom ly  
Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union is still t e pre erred 

Report of 
the Credit 

Committee
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TABLE 2
Classi cation o  Loans  an ary to ecember  it  comparati e g res or 

No of Loans No of Loans PURPOSE OF LOANS LOAN VALUE  LOAN VALUE
     2013      2014 LOAN PURPOSE DESCRIPTION 2014 2013

      6          omestic E penses                 
               olidays Local  Aboard         6  6
               o sing rc ase  ortgage  Repair   6 6 6
               6  n estments                      6 6 6  
                 F neral                              
                Weddings  C ristenings             6  6
                  Car Licences  ermits                    
               Car Repairs  arts              6  
                rc asing o  Cars                6
      6        66  Consolidation O  ebts            6
               Fire  Li e  Car ns rance          6  6
              6  edical E penses                 6  6 66
      6 6        6  Ed cation E penses                66
                6  Legal E penses                    
               o se old F rnis ings               6  
      6          C ristmas S opping               6  6 6
                 Carni al E penses                   6  6 66
                Rent       6  
              6  Li e y  Li e    6  6
                  Loan            
         6 Sc ool ooks Special                
         C ristmas romotion    
     6267      5692   43,462,614.25 32,861,707.33

c oice to members en personal borro ings are 
needed  rat er t an t e commercial banks and 

nance o ses

 o ld like to t ank all t e members o  t e Committee 
or t eir contrib tion  s pport and t e many o rs gi en 

to t e Credit Union  T is committee also t anks CECU 
members or allo ing s t e opport nity to ser e in t is 
capacity   Sincere appreciation is o ered to t e eneral 

anager  management and sta  or t eir s pport 
d ring o r term o  o ce  T is allo ed s to cond ct 
o r responsibilities in an e ecti e and e cient manner

nior oray
Chairman, Credit Committee

p

ooooooray
man, Credittt CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCommimmmmmmmmmimmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm ttee

TABLE 1
Attendance Record April st    arc  t  

Name Possible Attendance Present Excused
nior oray   
lenn iontko ski   6

Rosemary Ayres   
iola Callender   
atalie O en   
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Credit Committee
Left to right: Glenn Piontkowski, Secretary; Viola Callender, Member; Junior Dhoray, Chairman; 

Natalie Owen, Member; Rosemary Ayres, Member  Frederico Escandon, CECU member

TABLE 3

APPLICATIONS PRESENTED TO THE COMMITTEE

  A RO E                        OT A RO E                                                     TOTAL
EFERRE A T O AL SECUR TY

        6                                  6                                                                         6
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Scope of Works

T e S per isory Committee met se eral times o er 
t e last nancial year to cond ct an e amination o  
t e a airs o  Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union  
T is e amination incl ded an a dit o  t e books  as 

ell as an appraisal o  t e o erall nancial condition 
o  t e Credit Union   T e committee re ie ed 
loan applications  ens ring t at t ere as proper 
doc mentation  appropriate a t orisation  and t at 
ade ate sec rity as in place   S are and deposit 
acco nts  loan balances  cas  acco nts and sec rities 

ere also e amined  We o nd all to be satis actory  

Anti-Money Laundering/ Counter 
Terrorist Financing

Anti oney La ndering  Co nter Terrorist Financing
T e Committee contin ed its monitoring o  t e 
Credit Union’s compliance it  la s and reg lations 
relating to Anti oney La ndering and Co nter 
Terrorist Financing   T is area o  operations ill 
contin e to be o  general concern as t e reg latory 
rame ork  especially relating to Credit Unions  is 

broadened and deepened  ndeed  t e Financial 
ntelligence Unit as eig tened s r eillance o  
Credit Unions’ compliance e orts

Satisfactory Feedback

ring t e co rse o  t e Committee’s re ie s  
management pro ided acceptable responses or all t e 

Report 
of the 

Supervisory 
Committee

estions and iss es raised as ell as recommendations 
made  A member o  t e S per isory Committee as 
present or e ery oard eeting and t e committee 
is satis ed it  t e cond ct and content o  t e 
deliberations ic  ens ed

Strategic Direction

T e S per isory Committee s pports t e ario s 
strategic initiati es identi ed by t e oard  or t e 
contin ed impro ement and gro t  o  CECU ic  ill 
rebo nd to t e bene t o  its members  t is e ident t at 
t e oard is intent on orking to impro e all aspects o  
t e Credit Union’s operations  so t at it may s stain t e 
e isting le el o  o erall per ormance and e en s rpass 
t e e pectations o  its members

Special Thanks 

Canning’s Employees’ Credit Union contin es to be on 
a so nd nancial ooting  it  its eyes oc ssed on an 
e er c anging en ironment so t at it may s ccess lly 
na igate t e present and t re c allenges   T e 
S per isory Committee is satis ed it  t e res lts 
o  its e amination o er t e last year  and t anks t e 

oard  t e anagement  sta  and all members or t e 
opport nity to ser e t e Credit Union

ig el A  in eiro
Chairman

Lisa Escalante
Member

ernadette c Cart y
Member

nte
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Supervisory Committee
Left to right:
Jolie Smith, CECU Member;
Lisa Escalante, Member;
Miguel A.N. Pinheiro, Chairman;
Bernadette Mc Carthy, Member

Ten Year Review
Year    No. of        Total    Members       Loan   Reserve     Total    Surplus   Dividend %
 Members      Assets     Savings Outstanding     Fund   Income (After Trans       Paid
       to Reserve)

    6    6               
     6   6 6   6   6  6    

6 6  6    6       6  6    6 6 
  6           6  6 6    6 6  
 6  6     6  66   6     
 66  6 6 6  6 6    6 6  6  6    6
          6    
  6     6    6     
  6  6    6  6  6  6 6 
      6  6   6   6
  6  6  6  6    6  

roposed di idend
nterest Rebate                             
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T e members o  t e ominations Committee are

Trevor Fung  C airman  
Marsha Ali 
Dedra Cox
Eugene Stephenson Atwell  eneral anager e  o cio
Trevor Howell   
                                                                                                 
T e Committee obser ed t e ollo ing proced res

 omination orms ere sent to all locations
 otices ere posted in t e press or a 

t ree eek period in iting nominations or 
positions on t e oard o  irectors  Credit and 
S per isory Committees   

As a res lt  t e Committee recei ed  
  nominees or t e oard
  nominees or t e Credit Committee
  nominees or t e S per isory Committee

irect contact as t en made it  all nominees to 
determine t eir a ailability and illingness to ser e

  candidates accepted nominations or t e oard
  candidates accepted nominations or t e 

Credit Committee
  candidates accepted nominations or t e 

S per isory Committee

CECU ad determined to be g ided by t e re irements 
o  t e Central ank’s olicy roposal oc ment regarding 
t e Fit and roper  criteria  T ere ore  all candidates 
 it  t e e ception o  t ose o a e ser ed or 

are c rrently ser ing on t e board or t eir respecti e 
Committees  ere in ited to attend an inter ie  ere 
t e nctions and responsibilities o  t e respecti e 
positions ere e plained in detail  

Emp asis as placed on t e ollo ing
 ersons aspiring to old o ce m st be prepared 

to dedicate t eir time and commitment to t e 
Credit Union

 ominees ere e pected to possess a s cient le el 
o  skill and or e perience to per orm t eir d ties 
e ciently and m st also a ail t emsel es to training 
in co operati e p ilosop y and principles

The 
Nominations 

Committee 
Report
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 no ledge o  t e Co operati e Societies Act and 
Reg lations and CECU’s ye La s  olicies  and 
t e bene ts o  being a member ere considered 
to be an essential criteria in t e e ercise

 T e onesty and integrity o  t ose selected 
m st be n estionable  and t e ability to treat 
all matters pertaining to members’ dealings 

it  t e Credit Union it  strict con dentiality 
as rein orced

At t e end o  t e e ercise  one o  t e nominees or 
t e S per isory Committee did not meet t e criteria  
T is member is c rrently p rs ing a degree ic  
pon s ccess l completion  ill allo  er to meet t e 

criteria  One o  t e nominees or t e Credit committee 
as nable to attend an inter ie  be ore t e deadline 

date d e to illness  

T e Committee is recommending t e ollo ing 
candidates or consideration by t e members ip at t e 
Ann al eneral eeting

Recommended nominees ere

Board of Directors

 enni er art olome eorge 
 Terri Ann osep rat aite
 ean ictor e Sil a
 nior oray
 Lisa Escalante

6  lenroy Forrester 
 enny alsa 
 ernadette c Cart y 
 ig el in eiro 
 Frank Ri as

Credit Committee

 Rosemary Ayres
 iola Callender 
 nior oray 
 iselle all
 at y Ann oe

6  atalie O en
 lenn iontko ski

Supervisory Committee
 

 Erica Ca oe 
 Cyllan C arles 
 Francis nniss
 anice Learmond Cri i
 rt Scotland 

6  erek Tang ian
 atricia W ite

 

All t e pro les o  candidates ere placed on CECU’s 
ebsite mycec com prior to t is Ann al eneral 
eeting and are incorporated in t is Ann al Report

We tr st t at t ese pro les o ld g ide yo  in selecting 
t e best persons or t e respecti e Committees so t at 
Canning’s’ Employees’ Credit Union contin es to be a 
benc mark or t e Credit Union o ement in Trinidad 
and Tobago

Tre or F ng
Chairman

ominations Committee

g
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2015 Board of Directors Nominees
Name: TERRI ANN BRATHWAITE

lace o  Work  Sandstone  Cons lting
osition  siness Cons ltant

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience  Secretary to t e oard o  irectors
 ember o  t e oard o  irectors
 C airman o  t e Ed cation Committee
 ember o  t e marketing Committee
Credit Union Training  Works ops Seminars nternational
    Con erence articipation
Ot er Training Related Skills  sc Social Sciences
 A nternational arketing
 ACCA iploma in Financial anagement

Name: JEAN VICTOR de SILVA
lace o  Work  Trinidad Systems Limited
osition  C ie  Operating O cer

CECU embers ip   Years
Ot er Training Related Skills  oard ember Trinidad Systems Limited
    T e oc centre Ltd
 O er  years o  Strategic Le el
    anagement E perience
 ario s Leaders ip  e elopmental  rogrammes
 ario s siness anagement related co rses
 E cellent Acco nting skills  ractical  Analytical  
 no ledegble in dgeting  Strategic
    lanning processes
 arketing and rod ct Strategies
 Treas rer o  St Francis o  Assisi con erence o
    St  incent de a l Society  arbados
 Sr  ember  Alp a Team o  E angelisation arm o
    St  Finbars’s
 aris
 Rotary Cl b o  Antig a

Name: MIGUEL PINHEIRO
lace o  Work   amel Smit   Co
osition  anager Finance

CECU embers ip   years
Credit Union E perience  Liaison O cer
 C airman S per isory Committee
Credit Union Training  ario s Credit Union orks ops
Ot er Training Related Skills  iploma and asters in siness Administration rom 
    enley anagement College
 ario s siness anagement related co rses
 Training co rses in man Reso rces anagement
    and Co nseling
 ore t an  years e perience in a Senior 
    anagement position
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Name: LISA ESCALANTE
lace o  Work  assy Ltd
osition  ension Administrator  ro p ension O cer

CECU embers ip   years
Credit Union E perience  Liaison O cer
 Alternate S per isory Committee
 S per isory Committee
Credit Union Training  ario s Credit Union orks ops
Ot er Training Related Skills  man Reso rces ractices and proced res  Credit
Financial
 Analysis  ortgage Lending  Administration  Employee
 ene ts  Employee Engagement  Financial lanning
 A man Reso rces 
 A anagement nd strial  Organi ation syc ology
 ario s Leaders ip  e elopmental  rogrammes

NAME: JUNIOR DHORAY
lace o  Work  Caribbean ottlers o  Trinidad and Tobago CCTT
osition  man Reso rces anager

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience  C air o  t e Credit Committee
 ember o  t e S per isory Committee
 ember o  t e Ed cation Committee
 Liaison O cer 
 C air o  t e man Reso rce Committee
 ember o  t e n estment Committee
Credit Union Training  Works ops Seminars nternational
    Con erence articipation
Ot er Training Related Skills  iploma in man Reso rces
 Training e elopment Locally and Regionally
 Certi cates in negotiation and n estigations
 nternational Local Sec rity training
 Certi cate in ncident anagement  Crisis Resol tion
 Certi cate in E A  Training ss es  C allenges
    Facing Employees
 Certi cate in En ironment Occ pational Sa ety
     ealt  Re
 Emergency edical Response Training

Name: FRANK RIVAS
lace o  Work  All Ro nd Trading Co  Ltd
osition  Acco nt E ec ti e

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience  Alternate oard o  irectors
 ember o  t e Ed cation Committee
Credit Union Training  Anti oney La ndering and Combating o
    Terroist Financing
Ot er Training Related Skills  A ono rs  siness Administration
    Uni ersity o  S nderland
 Comm nications  C stomer Stake older
    Relations anagement
 ember o  Ad lt Literacy T tors Association ALTA
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Name: GLENROY FORRESTER
lace o  Work  Eastern Commercial Land T a Tr  al
osition  Operations anager

CECU embers ip   years
Credit Union E perience  ember o  t e oard o  irectors
 ember o  t e arketing  Ed cation  ye La s 
Committees
Credit Union Training  Works ops Seminars nternational Con erence articipation
Ot er Training Related Skills  Certi cate in anaging and Training eople
 T e ynamics o  S per ision
 Certi cate in Total ality anagement
 Certi cate in rocery Operations
 iploma in C tting and erc andising and anagement
Ot er Associations  Acti e member in St  C arles RC C rc  anagement 
 resident o  t e O  Road otorcycle Ass  O  T T
 ance T tor at El orado and Freeport Yo t  e elopment 
    and Apprentices ip Centers

Name: KENNY JALSA
lace o  Work Retired assy Ltd
osition  Financial Cons ltant

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience  ice resident to t e oard o  irectors
 ember o  t e oard o  irectors
 C airman o  t e S per isory Committee
 C airman o  t e T Committee
 ember o  t e ilding Committee
 C airman o  t e n estment Committee
 ember o  t e Amalgamation Committee
Credit Union Training  Works ops Seminars nternational Con erence articipation
Ot er Training Related Skills  Fello s ip o  t e Association o  C artered Certi ed
    Acco ntants  England
 ember o  t e nstit te o  nternal A ditors  Orlando  USA
 ember o  t e nstit te o  C artered Acco ntants o  
    Trinidad and Tobago

Name: BERNADETTE MC CARTHY
lace o  Work  S Sec re Sol tions Ltd
osition  Credit S per isor

CECU embers ip  6 years
Credit Union E perience  S per isory Committee
 Ser ed on t e Credit Committee or  Years 
 Ser ed on t e S per isory Committee or  Years at
 T e ns rance nd stry Credit Union
Credit Union Training  Seminars orks ops
 Anti oney La ndering and Combating o
    Terroist Financing
Ot er Training Related Skills  siness Acco nting anagement UW
 Certi ed Acco nting Tec nician CAT
 ACCA Le el 
 ospitality inister and E c arist inister 
  C rc  Santa Cr
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2015 Credit Committee Nominees

NAME: JUNIOR DHORAY
lace o  Work  Caribbean ottlers o  Trinidad and Tobago CCTT
osition  man Reso rces anager

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience  C air o  t e Credit Committee
 ember o  t e S per isory Committee
 ember o  t e Ed cation Committee
 Liaison O cer 
 C air o  t e man Reso rce Committee
 ember o  t e n estment Committee
Credit Union Training  Works ops Seminars nternational
    Con erence articipation
Ot er Training Related Skills  iploma in man Reso rces
 Training e elopment Locally and Regionally
 Certi cates in negotiation and n estigations
 nternational Local Sec rity training
 Certi cate in ncident anagement  Crisis Resol tion
 Certi cate in E A  Training ss es  C allenges
    Facing Employees
 Certi cate in En ironment Occ pational Sa ety 
    ealt  Re
 Emergency edical Response Training

Name: ROSEMARY AYRES
lace o  Work  assy Stores Ltd
osition  rocery anager

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience  ember o  t e Credit Committee
Credit Union Training  Works ops Seminars
 Seminars in Anti  oney La ndering
Ot er Training Related Skills  Former S op Ste ard Secretary  Financial Secretary
 Trade Union
 S per isory Training Certi cate
 Con ict anagement Training Certi cate
 Comp ter Literacy Certi cate

Name: GISELLE HALL
lace o  Work  Formally o  assy Stores Ltd
osition  akery Lead erson rade 

CECU embers ip   years
Credit Union E perience Alternate Credit Committee
Ot er Training Related Skills  S per isory Training
 Leaders ip Training
 Comp ter Literacy Training
 Con ict anagement Training
 SSE Training  Comm nication Training
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Name: NATALIE OWEN
lace o  Work  assy Stores Ltd
osition  Store anager

CECU embers ip   years
Credit Union E perience  An Alternate on Credit Committee 6
 ember o  t e Credit Committee
 Liaison O cer
 ember o  t e elin ency Committee
 ember o  t e man Reso rce Committee
Credit Union Training  Financial Literacy Seminar it  Cecil Syl ester
 oney La ndering  W at Yo  eed To no
Ot er Training Related Skills  asic Acco nting Skills  Treas rer Secretary
 iploma  man Reso rce anagement
 Associate egree  in man Reso rce anagement  
 eal  assy iddle anagement program 
    nstit te o  siness
 Con ict anagement  isp te Resol tion Works op
 Leaders ip Training Certi cate
 Certi cate  in S permarket Retail A 

Name: VIOLA CALLENDER
lace o  Work  Retired Former Store anager  assy Stores Ltd

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience  Liaison O cer 
 S per isory Committee  Secretary
 ember o  t e Credit Committee
Credit Union Training  Works op Seminars anagement and Financial Literacy 
 Seminars  
 Seminars in Anti  oney La ndering
Ot er Training Related Skills  Certi cate co rses completed in roblem Sol ing  
 anagement and Leaders ip
 Certi cate co rse in arketing  Cipriani College o  Labo r
 eal  assy iddle anagers Art r Lok ack S
 Certi cate in Spanis  Centre or Learning Lang ages  UW
 ember ol nteer Trinidad  Tobago Cancer Society
 ember o  TTAR

Name: KEITH SAMARU
lace o  Work   illiton
osition Asset rotection Specialist

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience  ERC  ember o  S per isory Committee
 resident o  Central ank Employees’ Credit Union
 resident o  Arima oly Cross Credit Union
 S per isor o  oly Cross Credit Union
 anager o  Arima oly Cross Credit Union
Credit Union Training  Works ops Seminars Con erence articipation
Ot er Training Related Skills  sc Enconomic
 sc Sec rity Admistration and anagement
 Assocaite egree in Occ pation Sa tery and ealt
 Assocaite egree in Sec rity Adminstration
    and anagement
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Name: KATHY-ANN JOE
lace o  Work  assy Stores Ltd
osition  epartment anager

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience Alternate Credit Committee
 ember o  t e Ed cation Committee
 Anti oney La ndering and Combating o
    Terroist Financing
Ot er Training Related Skills  S per isory anagement  
 Con ict anagement Resol tion Skills
 rs ing ACCA

Name: GLENN PIONTKOWSKI
lace o  Work  Retired

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience  ember o  t e Credit Committee
Credit Union Training  Works ops Seminars Con erence articipation
Ot er Training Related Skills  Certi cate co rses in anagement and siness
 iddle angement Co rse  O
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2014 Supervisory Committee Nominees
Name: JANICE LEARMOND-CRIQUI  CPC, ACC

lace o  Work  Egret Limited  T e Falls at Wes all
osition  Administrator

CECU embers ip   years
Credit Union E perience  Liaison O cer
 Alternate S per isory Committee
Credit Union Training  Liaison O cer Training
 Financial Literacy Seminar it  Cecil Syl ester
 Attended a Strategic lan and b dget or t e year  
    meeting o  t e Association o  Credit Union residents
    o  T T ACU TT
Ot er Training Related Skills  Ad ance Strategic R ractices l s Certi cate program
    Cornell Uni ersity
 nd strial Relations Co rses  ECA  Certi cate  Ad anced 
 Certi cates in R   S CS  Certi ed ro essional Coac   
 nternational Coac ing Academy  A stralia   icroso t O ce 
 User Specialist  E ecti e Speaking  man Relations
 So t gate Tec nical College U  is op’s Centenary College
    ro essional Trainer
 oard ember  aple Lea  nternational Sc ool

Name: PATRICIA WHITE
lace o  Work  Caribbean ottlers o  Trinidad and Tobago CCTT
osition  ayroll S per isor

CECU embers ip   years
Credit Union E perience  Liaison O cer
 Alternate Credit Committee
 ember  S per isory Committee
 Secretary S per isory Committee
 C airman S per isory Committee
Credit Union Training  Seminar on Credit Unionism
 Anti oney La ndering and Combating o
    Terroist Financing
 F U Training  A L CFT Compliance Seminar
Ot er Training Related Skills  C artered member o  T nap na Lions Cl b   Years
 Ser ed as resident o  t e T nap na Lions Cl b or  Years
 Ser ed as Lion one and Region C airman or istrict 6 A
 E ec ti e ember o  t e Coterie oard o  Social Workers
 resident o  Coterie o  Social Workers o  Trinidad
    and Tobago

Name: DEREK TANG NIAN
lace o  Work  Trinidad Systems Limited

 Trinidad Systems Limited  Leaseing Company Ltd
osition  irector  Corporate Secretary  eneral anager

CECU embers ip   Years
Ot er Training Related Skills  Uni ersity o  London sc Comp ting 
    n ormation Systems O S
 een’s ark Cricket Cl b ockey Section   
    ice C airman
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Name: KURT SCOTLAND
lace o  Work  assy Wood ro p Ltd
osition  S pply C ain anger  Engineering and ro ects

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience  ember o  t e ominations Committee
 ember o  t e n estment Committee
Ot er Training Related Skills  Under grad ate egrees in Finance and Acco nting
 ost grad ate egree in Acco nting asters
 nternational Finance e perience orking in e  York  
    erm da and ra il
 E ecti e moti ator and ynamic Team Leader
 Strong Leaders ip alities
 Strong egotiation Skills

Name: FRANCIS INNISS
lace o  Work  assy Stores Ltd
osition  Store anager

CECU embers ip   years
Credit Union E perience  Alternate member o  t e Credit Committee
 ember  S per isory Committee
 C airman S per isory Committee
Credit Union Training  Anti oney La ndering and Combating o
    Terroist Financing
 oney La ndering  W at Yo  eed To no
Ot er Training Related Skills  Certi cate in nternal A diting UW
 anaging T e Total Store Food arketing nstit te USA
 eal  assy iddle anagers Art r Lok ack  S

Name: ERICA CAZOE
lace o  Work  assy Stores Ltd
osition  Front End S per isor

CECU embers ip   Years
Credit Union E perience  S per isory Committee  Liaison O cer  
 Alternate oard ember
Credit Union Training  Seminar on Credit Unionism
 Anti oney La ndering and Combating o  Terroist Financing
Ot er Training Related Skills  Con ict anagement  Resol tions
 anagerial e elopment
 siness mpro ement ro ects
 iddle anagement  Art r Lok ack

Name: CYLLAN CHARLES
lace o  Work  assy Stores Ltd
osition  Operations anager

CECU embers ip   years
Credit Union E perience Alternate Credit Committee
Ot er Training Related Skills  Cipriani College o  Labo r  Co op St dies
 sc man Reso rces anagement
 iploma man Reso rces
 Seminars in Anti  oney La ndering
 Cons ltant  Li e Coac   ingdom Family Lo e inistries
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Liaison Officers
LOCATION NAME CONTACT

All Ro nd Trading Co  Ltd   c onald Street Woodbrook arlene ollers 6

abas  edia  E ents Ltd   St  incent Street  ort o  Spain rs atas a Annandsing  6

 illiton Trinidad C  Ltd  n aders ay To er  n aders ay
A drey e ers ig ay  O S  s  Lo isa a l 

Cardio asc lar Association Ltd   O ord Street  ort o  Spain r Co rteney A g stine 6  6

CAR  re ery  lass Works  Eastern ain Road  C amps Fle r rs  Ann enny iltoo Ali 66

Carib Clean Ltd   rd Street East  Ro land A en e  Trincity rs Ailsa Ross 6

Caribbean ottlers T T  Ltd  Streat am Lodge
C rc ill Roose elt ig ay T nap na s atricia W ite  66 6

Caribbean ottlers Ltd  So t Tr nk  m ries Roads  San Fernando r Amra  Ali ocas 6

Caribbean rint Tec nologies  6 A o ndary Road E t  San an s  Sintra rince 6

CARS  Ltd  Cor  First A en e and Eig t Street  arataria  s a line Williams 6

Cascadia otel  Ariapita Road  St Anns r  arry idaisee 6

Climate Control Limited   Eastern ain Road  La entille s Ria a l 6 66

CU A Caribbean ns rance Ser ice   ray Street  St Clair r  Wayne Cordner 6 6

airy istrib tors Ltd  nd Floor  St  Clair lace
 St  Clair A en e  St  Clair s S san Lenno Wrig t 6

etect and eter Sec rity Ser ices Limited  r C rtis Floyd
 6t  Street West  Castleton  Trincity Sara  ool air 6 6

iskomart  Eastern ain Road  Cane Farm nction  Tacarig a          s  C ristine a abir 6

iskomart  Eastern ain Road  T nap na s  eela Ramb arose 6 6

Egret Limited  S ite 6  First Floor
T e Falls at West all  West oorings s anice iller 6

Embassy o  t e United States o  America
 eens ark West ort o  Spain s  Alana ac e 6

Food iant S permarket  aritime Centre  arataria ettleton Ltd  r Wendell ansano 6

S Sec re Sol tions Trinidad  Ltd
6 6  Ed ard Street  ort o  Spain s Annette ospedales 6  e t 6

A CO Limited  R  Ware o sing  ago tie Trace  San an    s Cindy Sir  6 6  e t 

amel Smit   Co   Albion St
Cor Albion  ere Sts  ort o  Spain r ig el in eiro 6

o n ickinson  Co W  Ltd  iamond ale nd Est  iego artin s Loraine T omas 6

iss aking Company Ltd   aston Street  C ag anas s  Wendy C n n 6
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La Cantina   ictoria A en e ort o  Spain r  ester Syl ester 6

La g lin  e annes Ltd   ndonald St  ort o  Spain s argaret Ann arris 6

Leon Ambrose  Company   raemar Road Cascade rs Camille F llerton  C o  

Les Amantes e es s Society Ltd
Cor  Saddle Road  La astora Road  Santa Cr  rs Ce elle ames 6 6 6

arket Facts  Opinion Tragarete Road ort o  Spain s imberly illip 6

assy istrib tion
acoya Rd  C rc ill Roose elt ig ay  T nap na s S erry Ann arcia  6

assy Energy  6  Cipero Street  Cross Crossing  San Fernando s onna arie iseppi  6   6 6
 s Sandra o der 

assy as rod cts  t  Lisas nd strial Estate  Sa onetta  t  Lisas r igel ris  6 6

assy Limited  6  ark Street  ort o  Spain  s ars a Ali 6 6

assy otors A tomoti e Components Ltd  O’ eara Road  Arima r a l o andan 6 6

assy Stores  Alyce len  orne Coco Road  etit alley s  Carol rentice 6 6 66

assy Stores  road ay    Cocorite Road  Arima rs  S erry Sooknanan  66
 s  ikki odge

assy Stores   Saddle Road  ara al s  S ette ood 6  6

assy Stores   Cascade Road  St  Ann’s s Erica Ca oe 6

assy Stores
Cor  apo Cap de ille  t  Fortin ain Road  oint Fortin r Et elbert ascombe 6

assy Stores
Corner So t  Tr nk Road and amboo ay Road  La Romain  s Celia ackson 6  6

assy Stores  Cre s nn ointe o rde Road  C ag aramas s atalie O en 6

assy Stores  El orado   Eastern ain Road  El orado s  arisa Andre  66  6

assy Stores  Frenc  Street  Woodbrook  s arcia art olome   6

assy Stores  ead O ce   Wrig tson Road  ort o  Spain s enni er Williams 6 6

assy Stores  ig land la a  Western ain Road  lencoe s  Lynette ittens 6

assy Stores  arabella Ro ndabo t  opa l Lands  arabella s  o  Ale ander 6

assy Stores  id Centre S opping la a  C ag anas s Rast ee Sankar 66

assy Stores  Ridge ood  ollis A en e  Arima s icole oyle Ed ards   66
 rs  eis a a adeosing

assy Stores  S oppes o  ara al  Saddle Road  ara al s Sas a blin 6 6

assy Stores  s  ala arine
St A g stine S opping Centre  Eastern ain Road  St  A g stine s  ictoria Ann Constantine 6 6

assy Stores
Starlite S opping Centre Western ain Road iego artin s C eryl saac Walcott 6 6 6

asssy Stores  Trincity nd strial Estate  s  e inna Aroon
Corner Tiss e ri e  C rc ill Roose elt ig ay  Tacarig a s  icole ibson 6
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assy Stores  West all  Western ain Road  Westmoorings s at y Ann oe 6  6 6

assy Tec nologies   een Street  ort o  Spain s  anessa Ramire  6 6

assy Tec nologies n o Com Trinidad  Ltd
 Tragarete Road  ort o  Spain s R onda Clarke 6

assyCat ac inery  Uria  tler ig ay  C ag anas s  Candice osep  66  

c Cann Erickson   Rapsey Street  St Clair s Wendy o n 6  e t 

assy S ipping Ser ices Trinidad  Ltd
acoya Rd  C rc ill Roose elt ig ay  T nap na s Camille omes 6

icon arketing  Fernandes nd Est  E R  La entille s Satee a ara  6 6 

ational Carni al Commission   St Clair A en e  St  Clair  O S  r enry arcial 6

E CO   e  Street  ort o  Spain s  s a  ereira 6 6

e to n edical Centre   arli Street  ort o  Spain rs  C eryl Solomon 6

lantation eac  illas Ltd  Stone a en ay Road  lack Rock  Tobago r Sean Clarke 6

rism Ser ices Trinidad Ltd
Unit  Ware o se  Fernande  nd strial Est  E R La entille s  Simone Wellington 6

ro Tec nologies Ltd   elmont Circ lar Road  elmont s Wendy lentie 6 6

Rentokil nitial  Field   LL  Arang e  So t  rs  Angela aynes Yo ng  66
 s  aren art olme

Risk Researc  Ltd  S ite L  retton all  ictoria A en e ort o  Spain s oanne ende  6

Rotoplastics Trinidad Ltd  Lot C  on ig el E t  Rd  San an s S eryl iarr el 6 6

T e  Ltd  e erte il Street  ort o  Spain s Tamara osep  6

T e O ce A t ority Ltd  edia Sales Ltd SL Comple
El Socorro E t  San an rs ictoria Lares Loobie 6

Trinidad Systems Ltd Wood ord Street  e to n  ort o  Spain rs aren aks  6  e t

Trinidad Tiss es Limited    Tiss e ri e  nd strial Estate  Trincity s era a ara  6  e t 

Tr  al   Long Circ lar all  St  ames s Carlene Was ington 6

Tr  al  Trincity all  Trincity s Carlene Was ington 6

 arketing Ser ices Ltd   Ert ig Road  elmont s  Solange eters 6 6

Waste isposal Ltd   Concessions Road  Sealots  ort o  Spain s Alyson Forde 6 6 6



Notes


